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Chairman’s Message
Dear Stakeholders,
As I look back on a year as your new Chairman, the world
has endured some of the predicted and unpredicted economic anguishes. We are also uniquely witnessing a shift of
economic dominance with the emerging “Chindian Century”,
where China and India are beginning to take on an ambition
of becoming the world’s economic giants supported by the
other BRIC countries. This paradigm shift brings about many
challenges, including what we are witnessing right now.
Despite external and domestic challenges, our island nation
has shown extraordinary resilience and had managed to stay
on course in meeting her objectives and targets. Along with
your staunch support, I am delighted to let you know that
your Company has also managed to be within its strategic
plan to achieve its highest net profit of Rs 131 million in the
last five years. Hence, I am pleased to present the Annual
Report and Financial Statements for UB Finance Company
Limited (UBF) for the year ending March 31, 2013.

Global Economy
The impact of the 2008 financial crisis still haunts the global market. The ongoing market volatility continues to hamper economic growth throughout the world. One of the former economic giants’ the US remains sluggish, growing by
2.3% in 2012, from 1.8% in 2011. They were lurking towards
a steep budget deficit until the American Tax payer Relief
Act of 2012 was passed in December and signed into law
the following month by the current President Barack Obama. Consequent to this Act, the coming fiscal year is forecasted with a revenue increase of 8.13% and an incline in
spending of 1.15%. The eurozone, still embattled with the
sovereign debt crisis, most notably in the peripheral economies of Greece, Portugal, Ireland, Spain and Italy was driving
towards a recovery from the downward spiral. In the year,
the austerity measures structural reforms and commitments
to bail-out distressed nations kept the euro region unified
and above the abyss.

The global economic uncertainty was further amplified with
the Arab Spring of 2011 and the current Middle East conflict,
which is bringing civil and political unrest to the region. Contrary to the rest of the global economy, sub Saharan Africa
demonstrated a confident outlook, by maintaining stable
domestic demand, heightened exports and political stability.

Sri Lankan Economy
Rapidly overcoming the challenges imposed by thirty years
of conflict, we began 2012 on a considerable high, having
notched good performance in all key indicators. As a nation, we have moved ahead within a framework of relatively
sound fundamentals with GDP growth of 6.5%, single digit
inflation and a historic decline in unemployment to 4.2%, accelerated tourism development with resilient external trade
all of which have assisted in reducing budget deficit.
During the year, the domestic economy was affected by the
adverse environmental conditions in the form of drought
that affected agricultural output as well as the country’s
hydropower generating capacities. Sustaining the growth
momentum of the economy was alarmed with some of the
macro imbalances that occurred at the commencement of
the year. In order to meet the end economic objectives, proactive measures were taken by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka
by tightening the reins on monetary policy, entailing a cap
on commercial bank lending as well as rationally targeting
increase in policy rates. Subsequently, after taking control
of the macro economy, CBSL has and continued to ease the
tightened monetary policy. They withdrew the cap on commercial bank lending in the beginning of 2013 giving a positive outlook for lending and gradually lowered the policy
rates.
This lower interest rate environment, greater access to funds
and stabilisation of the exchange rate all create a positive
environment for the business growth and we expect to take
full advantage of the economic environment to strengthen
your Company.
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Tourism achieved its projected target of welcoming one million tourists by the end of 2012, while maintaining focus on
mega infrastructure development in the road, power, ports,
airports and rural infrastructure sectors. Our nation gained
accolades when it reached the best ranked in South Asia in
the Human Development index, being ranked 97 of 187 countries. Sri Lanka also improved on its Global Prosperity index
to 58 from previous years ranking of 63.

Non Banking Finance Sector
We are in a robust and highly competitive industry, which
has a total of 47 Licensed Finance Companies and 12 Specialised Leasing Companies all competing for greater market
share. Competition within the sector escalated as four companies achieved license to operate as Leasing Companies
and four of the Specialised Leasing Companies were elevated to Finance Company status during the year. Asset growth
in our sector was abated to 22% in 2012 compared to the
previous year of 26%. However, we still witnessed the sector
increasing its presence and its reach by increasing branches from 766 to 972 with 155 branches being opened outside
the Western Province. The consolidation of the non-banking
financial sector is highly recommended and this is likely to
result in substantial cost savings and better operational efficiencies.
Even in the midst of challenges posed by the global and domestic volatilities, the sector resiliently sustained a higher
capital base and healthy earnings. Thus, being an important
contributor towards developing Sri Lanka into the US $4,000
per capita and a $100 billion economy by 2016. This sector
has immensely contributed towards creating a financially
savvy society and enhancing financial inclusivity.
Profitability of the sector dipped to Rs.15 billion from Rs.19
billion in 2011 mainly due to decrease in non-interest income
and an increase in non- interest expenses. Despite of the
above, deposits within the sector grew by 37% in 2012 compared to 27% in 2011, displaying an increased public confidence.
Learning from the past where this sector had unhealthy
business practices, mismanagement and lack of governance
which contributed towards the collapse of some Licensed Finance Companies, Central Bank of Sri Lanka has taken proactive measures to safeguard the health of this sector by
ensuring stringent monitoring of these companies. This year
CBSL issued two new directions to Licensed Finance Companies on information systems security policy and the upper limit on interest rates on deposits whilst four directions
were issued to the Specialised Leasing Companies on fitness
and propriety of Directors, computation of the statutory liquid asset ratio, maximum amount of borrowings and establishment of a panel of credible external auditors.

mittee, Stratergic Planning Committee, Credit Committee and
Integrated Risk Management Committee appointed by the
Board to assist in the effective discharge of its duties. This
year we have also invested in human capital by recruiting
talented individuals with strong industry knowledge to build
the first tier of Management.
Another focus this year has been in building our brand recognition and image. We relocated our Head Office to a new
plush building in Colombo 4. We have also focused aggressively in promoting your brand though media, promotional
items and street campaigns. Our objective for the coming
year is to open two to three branches per quarter to expand
our network to reach across the nation and deliver our products and services to your home towns.
The Board appointed M/s. Ernst & Young as the External Auditors and we are in the process of engaging M/s. KPMG as
the Internal Auditors of the Company to ensure transparency and that financial reporting and practices are in compliance with accounting standards, norms, and statutory and
regulatory requirements prescribed by the respective regulatory authorities. During the year we also finalised internal
adjustments to meet the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) where your Company’s financial statements are presented on the same basis as overseas counterparts making comparisons easier and simplifying access to
international capital markets.
I am pleased to make you aware that your Company is in
the transition period of implementing a cutting edge platform that fully integrates all the business lines and the general ledger, centralising information that will enable us to
take intelligent business decisions to improve productivity
and profitability. In order to improve interest income of your
Company we have aggressively focused on lending activities
and introduced working capital solutions such as factoring
to further diversify and improve our market share.

Appreciation
A heartfelt gratitude to the Governor and officials of the
Central Bank of Sri Lanka for their extended cooperation and
consultation to us. My sincere appreciation to the former
Chairman Mr. Ajita de Zoysa and to the rest of the Board of
Directors for their valued support. I would like to extend my
appreciation to the Chief Executive Officer, Ransith Karunarathne and UB Finance team for working tirelessly towards
steering the Company on a stable and a sustainable path.
I would also like to thank our loyal customers and stakeholders in the confidence you have in our Company. We will
continue to work towards meeting the aspirations of the
stakeholders.

About your Company
The Board of Directors, since acquiring this company set
about investing in people, process and technology. This is
the basis on which the turnaround would be based. In line
with our strategic plan, your Company has achieved its highest net profit of Rs. 131 million since the acquisition of Union
Bank. Our core capital ratio is at a very respectable 30.27%
which is well above the statuary levels. This has transpired
into our deposit customers having further confidence in us
by which we retain more than 70% of maturing deposits.
With the advocacy of our two primary shareholders’ Union
Bank and ShoreCap II, our fundamental focus was to build a
strong and stable framework within the Company. In order
to maintain high standards of governance in line with the
requirements of the Central Bank, we have implemented an
Audit Committee, Human Resources and Remuneration Com4

Alexis Lovell, MBE
Chairman
UB Finance Company Limited
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ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ON THE STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY
The Board of Directors of UB Finance Company Limited is
presenting the Annual Report and the State of Affairs of the
Company together with the Audited Financial Statements for
the year ended 31st March 2013 in compliance with Companies Act No. 07 of 2007. This report was approved by the
Board of Directors on 02nd September 2013.
This report is made in compliance with Section 168 of the
Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 and Finance Companies Direction No. 3 of 2008 on Corporate Governance for Registered
Finance Companies in Sri Lanka.
The Board of Directors have disclosed information of the
company which they believe is material and in the best interest of the Shareholders and the Company.

Legal status of the Company
The UB Finance Company Limited was incorporated under
the Companies Ordinance No.51 of 1938 on 12th July 1961 as
a Limited Liability Company under the name of The Finance
and Guarantee Company Limited. The Company was re-registered as required under the provisions of the Companies
Act No. 7 of 2007 on 26th December 2007. The name of the
Company was changed to UB Finance Company Limited on
25th April 2012.
The Company is a Finance Company in terms of the Finance
Business Act No.42 of 2011 and is a registered Finance Leasing Establishment in terms of the Finance Leasing Act No. 56
of 2000.

Major Shareholders of the Company
Union Bank of Colombo PLC, the parent Company and ShoreCap II Limited are the major Shareholders of the Company.
.

Principle Activities and the Nature of the Company

The principle business activity of the Company is providing
financial services namely, accepting deposits, maintaining
savings accounts, lease financing, hire purchasing, factoring,
pawning and real estate. the principle business activities of
the Company include investment activities such as accepting fixed deposits and savings accounts, finance activities
such as providing lease, hire purchase and loan facilities
and working capital activities such as factoring. The Company also deals in real estate and other investment and credit
activities.

Financial Statements
The Complete Financial Statements of the Company made as
per revised Sri Lanka Accounting Standards comprising Sri
Lanka Financial Reporting Standards (SLFRS) and Lanka Accounting Standards (LKAS) set by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Sri Lanka and in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No.7 of 2007, duly signed by two
Directors on behalf of the Board are given on pages 30 to 75.

Accounting Policies
The Financial Statements made as per revised Sri Lanka Accounting Standards comprising Sri Lanka Financial Reporting
Standards (SLFRS) and Lanka Accounting Standards (LKAS)
set by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka
and in compliance with the requirements of the Companies
Act No.7 of 2007 adopting significant accounting policies are
given on pages 35 to 51 of this Annual Report.

Branch Net Work
As at 31st March 2013, the Company had 4 branches including the Head Office.

Financial Reporting & Responsibility for the Accounts
The Directors are satisfied that the Financial Statements
presented on pages 30 to 75 give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2013 and
the Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31st March
2013.
In addition, the Directors are satisfied with the Financial
Statements, appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and reasonable and prudent
judgments and estimates have been made and the ‘Going
Concern’ basis has been adopted.
The Directors also confirm that the Financial Statements of
the company have been prepared in compliance with the
Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 and Finance Business Act No.
42 of 2011. The Directors have taken reasonable measures to
safeguard the assets of the Company and to establish appropriate systems of internal control with a view to prevent
and detect frauds and other irregularities.
The Directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge all
taxes, statutory dues, and levies payable by the Company as
at the Balance Sheet date have been paid or where relevant
period for.

Payments made to Directors
The Directors fees, Remuneration and payments made are
disclosed in page 74 of this Annual Report.

Shareholder Register
As at 31st March 2013, the total number of Ordinary Voting
Shares issued by the Company was 1,483,615,757 including
786 Ordinary Voting Shareholders.
As at 31st March 2013, the total number of Ordinary Non
Voting Shares issued by the Company was 211,547,127 to Ordinary Non Voting Shareholders.

Directors & Officers Liability Policy
Union Bank of Colombo PLC, the parent company has obtained a Directors & Officers Liability Policy for a cover of
Rupees 300,000,000 from CHARTIS Insurance Limited covering
the Directors interests of the subsidiaries.

Auditors Report
M/s. Ernst & Young, Chartered Accountants was appointed
as the External Auditors of the Company at the Annual General Meeting held on 10th September 2012.
The report of the Auditors on the Financial Statements of the
Company is given on page 29.
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Directorate
The Directors of the Company as at 31st March 2013
Name of th e Director

Position

Mr. Alexis Indrajit Lovell

Chairman

Alternate Director

01/11/2011

Mr. Ananda Wijetilaka Atukorala

Deputy Chairman/
Senior Director

11/07/2012

Mr. Dishan Amrit Jitendrakumar
Warnakulasuriya

Director

01/11/2011

Mr. Kenneth Kusinath Upali Wijeyesekera

Director

01/11/2011

Mr. Malinda Namal Samaratunga

Director

01/11/2011

Mr. Davis Golding

Director

Mr. Chithrupa Premalal Ajith Wijeyesekara

Director

23/12/2011

Mr. Daman Upul Panditaratne

Director

29/05/2012

Mr. Rohendra Ajith Wijeyesekera

Director

29/06/2012

Mr. Nalin Fernando

Director

10/01/2013

Mr. Padmin Manisha
Fernando

Date of appointment

01/11/2011 and Alternate Director appointed
on 29/06/2012

Mr. Ananda Atukorala, Mr. Daman Upul Panditaratne, Mr. Rohendra Ajith Wijeyesekera and Mr. Nalin Fernando are the
Independent Non executive Directors of the Company.

Mr. Alexis Indrajit Lovell, Chairman of the Company is a Non
Independent Non Executive Director. Hence, Mr. Ananda Atukorala was appointed as the Senior Director of the Board.
Other Non Independent Non Executive Directors are Mr. Dishan Amrit Jitendrakumar Warnakulasuriya, Mr. Kenneth Kusinath Upali Wijeyesekera, Mr. Malinda Namal Samaratunga,
Mr. Davis Golding and Mr. Chithrupa Premalal Ajith Wijeyesekara.

Mr. Ransith Karunaratne is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company.

Shareholdings of Directors in the Company/Parent Company

Name of the Director
Mr. Alexis Indrajit Lovell
Mr. Ananda Wijetilaka Atukorala
Mr. Dishan Amrit Jitendrakumar
Warnakulasuriya
Mr. Kenneth Kusinath Upali Wijeyesekera
Mr. Chithrupa Premalal Ajith Wijeyesekara

Shareholdings of
Directors in the
Company/Parent
Company

No. of Non Voting Shares
in the
Company

None

None

22,743,780

10,010

None

25,500

4,251,114

None

11,306,709

57

668,430

200

4,991,169

None

18,508,468

1,700

None

6,100

Mr. Rohendra Ajith Wijeyesekera
Mr. Padmin Manisha Fernando
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No. of Voting Shares in
the Parent
Company

100
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Other Directorships held by the Board
Set out below are the directorships held by the Directors in other Institutions as at 31st March 2013.
Name of the Director

Other Directorships Held
Director
1. Associated Electrical Corporation Ltd
2. Access Engineering PLC
3. Sathosa Motors PLC
4. Lake Leisure Holding (Pvt)Ltd
5. Real Investment Holdings Pte Ltd

Mr. Alexis Indrajit Lovell

Chairman
1. National Asset Management Limited
2. Union Bank of Colombo PLC
Principal
1. JI Capital Limited
Mr. Ananda Wijetilaka Atukorala

Director
1. United Motors Lanka PLC
2. Orient Finance PLC
3. Pragnya Tech Parks Lanka (Pvt) Limited
4. Arni Holdings & Investments (Pvt) Limited
5. Saphron Solutions (Pvt) Limited
6. Unawatuna Boutique Resort (Pvt) Ltd

Mr. Dishan Amrit Jitendrakumar Warnakulasuriya

Chairman
1. GIS Solutions (Pvt) Limited
2. Hambana Petrochemicals (Pvt) Limited
3. Imperial Institute of Computing (Pvt) Ltd
4. Imperial Institute of Higher Education (Pvt) Ltd
5. Imperial Institute of Hospitality and Leisure
Integrated BPO Solutions (Pvt) Ltd
6. Just in Time (Pvt) Ltd
7. Just in Time Holdings (Pvt) Ltd
8. Just in Time Technologies (Pvt) Ltd
9. MS Technologies (Pvt) Ltd
10. Techsys (Pvt) Ltd
11. The Net Net (Pvt) Ltd

Mr. Kenneth Kusinath Upali Wijeyesekera

Director
1. Pelawatta Sugar Industries Plc (presently non- functional)

Mr. Malinda Namal Samarathunga

None

Mr. Davis Golding

Director
1. Satin Creditcare Network Ltd

Mr. Chithrupa Premalal Ajith Wijeyesekara

Chairman/Managing Director
1. Union Apparels (Pvt) Ltd
2. Union Resorts (Pvt) Ltd
3. North Star Holdings (Pvt) Ltd
4. Union Industrial Washing (Pvt) Limited
5. Dilly’s Fashions (Pvt) Ltd
6. National Asset Management Limited

Mr. Daman Upul Panditaratne

None

Mr. Rohendra Ajith Wijeyesekera

Director
1. Union Apparels (Pvt) Limited

Mr. Nalin Fernando

None

Mr. Padmin Manisha Fernando (alternate Director to Mr.
Davis Golding)

None
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New Appointments and Resignation of Directors
Mr. Ajita de Zoysa stepped down from the Directorship and
it was resolved to appoint Mr. Ajita de Zoysa as the Senior
Advisor to the Board at the Board Meeting held on 02nd October 2012. He abstained from accepting the said position.
Board of Directors unanimously appointed Mr. Alexis Indrajit
Lovell as the Chairman of the Company with effect from 2nd
October 2012.
Mr. Daman Upul Panditaratne, a Chartered Accountant was
appointed as an Independent Non Executive Director at the
Board Meeting held on 29th May 2012.
Mr. Rohendra Ajith Wijeyesekera was appointed as an Independent Non Executive Director to the Board on 29th June
2012.
Mr. Ransith Karunaratne was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 01st November
2012.
Mr. Nalin Fernando, a veteran Banker was appointed as an
Independent Non Executive Director on 19th January 2013.
Mr. Ananda Wijetilaka Atukorala, alternate director to Mr.
Davis Golding resigned and Mr. Manisha Fernando was nominated to be appointed as an Alternate Director to Mr. Davis Golding. Further, Mr. Ananda Wijetilaka Atukorala was
nominated to be appointed as an Independent Non Executive
Director to the Board at the Board Meeting held on 08th May
2012. Mr. Atukorala’s appointment was confirmed as an Independent Non Executive Director with effect from 11th July
2012 and he was appointed as the Deputy Chairman.
Mr. Yiu Joe Toh was stepped down from the directorship with
effect from 20th August 2012.
Mr. David Nigel Bartholomeusz alternate Director to Mr.
Alexis Indrajit Lovell stepped down at the Board Meeting
held on 01st October 2012 and he was appointed as the legal
Advisor to the Board.

Registers of Directors and Secretaries
The Company maintains a registry of Directors and Secretaries. The names and addresses and their business occupations are set out in this.

Communication
The Company strongly believes that all stakeholders should
have access to complete information on its activities performance and product initiatives.
The Directors declare their interest in contracts at meetings
and have refrained from voting when decisions are taken in
respect of these.

Directors’ Transactions with the Company/ Related
Party Disclosures
Directors’ Transactions with the Company Related Party
Disclosure are disclosed on page 74.

The Board of Directors appointed Mr. Ananda Atukorala as
the Senior Director to the Board at the Board Meeting held
on 05th April 2013.
Mr. Padmin Manisha Fernando stepped down from the alternate directorship and Ms. Leilamani Pereira was appointed
as the Alternate directors to Mr. Davis Golding at the Board
meeting held on 30th April 2013.
M/s Ernst & Young, the external auditors of the Company
advised the Board of Directors to hold an Extraordinary General Meeting as per Section 220 of the Companies Act No. 7
of 2007.
M/s KPMG Ford Rhodes Thornton & Co. were appointed as
the Internal Auditor of the Company at the Board Meeting
held on 27th June 2013 with the approval of the Central Bank
of Sri Lanka.

Interest Register
The Company is adhering to the requirements stipulated in
the Companies Act No.7 of 2007 and an Interest Register is
maintained in line with the said article. Monthly the Board
of Directors declare at the Board Meeting all related party
transactions and accordingly the Interest Register is updated.

Compliance with Rules & Regulations including Corporate Governance Practices
The Board of Directors acts in compliance with the statutory
requirements and has continuously communicated with the
regulatory and supervisory bodies. Compliance Report is tabled at the monthly Board meeting informing the status of
compliance levels as per the statutory requirements.
The Board has delegated its business operations to the Key
Management personnel led by the Chief Executive Officer
and business operations are monitored by the Board. The
Committee members liaise with the Key Management personnel in their day to day activities whenever necessary to
ensure the safety and soundness of the Company.
The Board of Directors have always taken decisions in accordance with the prevailing laws and regulations of the
Country and specifically imposed by the regulatory bodies.

BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board Committees were incorporated at the Board meeting held on 05th November 2012 and later revised on 28th
January 2013. Following are the details of the Committees
as at 31st March 2013 are as fallows

Audit Committee
Mr. Daman Upul Panditaratne - Chairman of the Committee
Mr. Davis Golding or his alternate Mr. Padmin Manisha
Fernando
Mr. Ananda Wijetilaka Atukorala
Mr. Nalin Fernando

Integrated Risk Management Committee

Post Balance Sheet Events

Mr. Ananda Wijetilaka Atukorala - Chairman of the Committee

The registered office of the Company was shifted from No.
46/46, 2nd floor, Green Lanka Towers, Nawam Mawatha, Colombo 02 to No. 10, Daisy Villa Avenue, Colombo 04 on 1st
April 2013.

Mr. Dishan Amrit Jitendrakumar Warnakulasuriya
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Mr. Rohendra Ajith Wijeyesekera
Mr. Nalin Fernando
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Mr. Chithrupa Premalal Ajith Wijesekara’s name is under the
IRMC committee on 5th November 2012 minutes and Mr. Rohendra
Ajith Wijeyesekera’s name is under IRMC on 28th January
2013.
Chief Executive Officer, Deputy General Manager and Senior
Manager Finance are also members of the IRMC Committee.

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee

Board Credit Committee
Mr. Nalin Fernando - Chairman of the Committee
Mr. Alexis Indrajit Lovell
Mr. Kenneth Kusinath Upali Wijeyesekera
Mr. Davis Golding or his alternate Mr. Padmin Manisha Fernando

Mr. Kenneth Kusinath Upali Wijeyesekera - Chairman of the
Committee

Mr. Ananda Wijetilaka Atukorala

Mr. Alexis Indrajit Lovell

The Committee on Land Issues

Mr. Dishan Amrit Jitendrakumar Warnakulasuriya

Mr. Alexis Indrajit Lovell

Mr. Chithrupa Premalal Ajith Wijeyesekara

Mr. Ananda Wijetilaka Atukorala

Mr. Rohendra Ajith Wijeyesekera

Mr. Kenneth Kusinath Upali Wijeyesekera

Mr. Ananda Wijetilaka Atukorala (by Invitation)

Mr. Daman Upali Panditaratne

Strategic Planning Committee

Mr. Malinda Namal Samarathunga

Mr. Alexis Indrajit Lovell - Chairman

Mr. Davis Golding or his alternate Mr. Padmin Manisha Fernando

Mr. Malinda Namal Samarathunga

Committee on IT

Mr. Davis Golding or his alternative Mr. Padmin Manisha Fernando

A Committee on IT related issues of the Company was appointed on 29th June 2012 and it was revised on 28th January 2013 and following are the present members of the Committee as at 31st March 2013.

Mr. Dishan Amrit Jitendrakumar Warnakulasuriya
Mr. Chithrupa Premalal Ajith Wijesekara
Mr. Ananda Wijetilaka Atukorala

Mr. Alexis Indrajit Lovell - Chairman
Mr. Ananda Wijetilaka Atukorala
Mr. Chithrupa Premalal Ajith Wijeyesekara
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Mr. Alexis Lovell (Alternate Director Nigel
Bartholomeusz resigned on 01/10/2012)

Mr. Ananda Atukorala

Mr. Ajith Wijeyesekera

Mr. Jit Warnakulasuriya

Mr. Malinda Samaratunga

Mr. Upali Wijeyesekera

Mr. Yiu Joe Toh (resigned on 20/08/2012)

Mr. Rohendra Wijeyesekera

Mr. Daman Panditaratne appointed on
29/05/2012

Mr. Nalin Fernando (appointed on 10/01/2013)

Mr. Davis Golding or his alternate director Manisha Fernando (resigned on 05/04/2013)
Anne Leilamni Pereira (appoited on 30/04/2013)
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Eligibility

05

08

08

04

03

Attendance

Audit Committee
Meetings

01

01

01

01

Eligibility

01

01

01

01

Attendance

Risk Management
Committee

01

01

01

01

Eligibility

01

01

01

00

Attendance

Human Resoures &
Remuneration

02

02

02

02

02

Eligibility

02

02

02

02

02

Attendance

Credit
Committee

01

01

01

01

01

01

Eligibility

01

01

00

00

01

01

Attendance

Strategic
Committee

Alexis Indrajit Lovell				Ransith Karunaratne				Nirosha Kannangara
Chairman					Chief Executive Officer				Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

The Board takes the opportunity to address the issues of shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. The Financial Statement of the Company is prepared according to the accepted
Rules and Accounting Standards. The Financial Accounts were published and also circulated prior to the Annual General Meeting. A copy of the Notice of Meeting is attached to this Annual Report.

Annual General meeting and Extra Oradinary General Meeting
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Mr. Ajita de Zoysa
(resigned on 01/10/2012)

Attendance

Board Meetings

Eligibility

NUMBER OF MEETINGS HELD AND ATTENDANCE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company is adhering to the applicable procedures, rules and regulations issued by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka. The following is the Annual Corporate Governance Report for the year ended 31st March 2013 settled by the Company as per Direction No. 3 of 2008 on Corporate Governance.
Direction
No.

Reference to the Finance Companies
Corporate Governance
Direction No. 3 of 2008

2.00

The Responsibilities of the Board of
Directors

2.01

The Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as
the Board) shall strengthen the safety and soundness of the Finance Company by;

Degree of Compliance

(a) Approving and overseeing the Finance Company’s strategic objectives and corporate values and
ensuring that such objectives and values are communicated throughout the Finance Company;

A Board Approved Strategic Plan for 2013/14 is in place
which is named as the “Strategic Intent 2013/14”
These strategic objectives and corporate values have
been communicated to the Management and are discussed and reviewed by the Board, Board Committees
and Management, periodically.

(b) Approving the overall business strategy of the
Finance Company, including the overall risk policy
and risk Management procedures and mechanisms
with measurable goals, for at least immediate next
three years;

The strategic intent document covering the budget for
the next three years (2013/14, 2014/15 and 2015/16)
has been approved by the Board.

(c) Identifying risks and ensuring implementation
of appropriate systems to manage the risks prudently;

The Integrated Risk Management Committee has a
mandate to identify the overall risk of the Company. A
framework is in place for the Management and staff to
report risk events to the Integrated Risk Management
Committee. The composition of the Integrated Risk
Management Committee and frequency of meetings is
disclosed under the “Annual Report of the Board of Directors on the state of affairs of the Company”

(d) Approving a policy of communication with all
stakeholders, including depositors, creditors, shareholders and borrowers;

The Company’s communication framework is covered in the administration manual and defines how it
communicates with depositors, creditors, share-holders and borrowers of the Company. This policy needs
to be further developed and approved by the Board of
Directors.

(e) Reviewing the adequacy and the integrity of the
Finance Company’s internal control systems and
Management information systems;

The adequacy and the integrity of the Company’s internal control system is reviewed by the Board through
the Board Audit Committee, Integrated Risk Management Committee and Credit Committee by way of internal audit reports, monthly Management reviews, sample reviews of credit engagement and system reviews.
The internal audit function was carried out by M/s.
Tudor V. Perera & Co. for the period of 1st April 2012
to 30th September 2012 and the reports have been
submitted to the Audit Committee which has been reviewed by the Audit Committee and recommendations
actioned in conjunction with the Management.

The Board has appointed an Integrated Risk Management Committee to manage business risks arising from
operations. The Integrated Risk Management Committee is in the process of introducing a Risk Management
Policy which is linked to the overall Business Strategy
addressing identified risks arising from same.

The Board is in the process of appointing M/s. KPMG
to carry out a comprehensive exercise that entails reviewing of all aspects of the Internal Control System
and the Management Information System.
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Direction
No.

Reference to the Finance Companies
Corporate Governance
Direction No. 3 of 2008
(f) Identifying and designating Key Management
Personnel, who are in a position to:
(i) significantly influence policy;
(ii) direct activities; and
(iii) exercise control over business activities, operations and risk Management;

Degree of Compliance
According to the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard (LKAS)
24 Related Party Disclosures, Key Management Personnel are those having authority and responsibility
for planning, directing and controlling the activities
of the entity. The Board members have identified The
Chief Executive Officer, the Deputy General Manager,
the Senior Finance Manager, the Company Secretary
and the Compliance Office as Key Management Personnel in 2012/13.

(g) Defining the areas of authority and key responsibilities for the Board and for the Key Management
Personnel.

Article 99-104 of the Company’s Articles of Association
speaks about the authority of Board Directors.

(h) Ensuring that there is appropriate oversight of
the affairs of the Finance Company by Key Management Personnel, that is consistent with the Finance
Company’s policy;

Board has a process for appropriate oversight of the
affairs of the Company by Key Management Personnel.
Affairs of the Company are presented by the Key Management Personnel to the Board for their information,
discussion, review and approval at Board Sub Committee meetings and the monthly Board meetings.

(i) Periodically assessing the effectiveness of its
governance practices, including:

As per the Articles of Association, the Board has the
power to make decisions on selection, nomination and
election of Directors.
Directors are selected and nominated to the Board
based on diversity of skills and experience in order to
bring about an objective judgment on issues of strategy, performance and resources. Election of Directors
is effected in accordance with the requirements of the

i) the section, nomination and election of Directors
and appointment of Key Management Personnel;
ii) the Management of conflict of interest; and
iii) the determination of weakness and implementation of changes where necessary;

The Company has a Board approved schedule of matters specifically reserved for the Board defining the areas of authority and key responsibilities of the Board
of Directors which is covered under the Code of Corporate Governance which has been approved by the
Board subsequent to the current financial year. The areas of authority and key responsibilities of the KMP’s
are in their job descriptions.

Companies Act No 07 of 2007.
Article 89 & 90 and Article 86 of the Articles of Association address the provisions on management of conflicts
of interest of Directors.
Conflicts of interests are managed on a monthly basis
where Directors disclose their Directorships in other
companies,. Key Management Personnel declare any
interest annually. Weaknesses are identified from the
above processes and changes may be implemented
where necessary.
The Board appraises the performance of the Directors
through an annual Board performance evaluation filled
by each Director
Key Management Personnel are selected and recruited
in terms of the HR policy of the Company. Key Management Personal directly report to the Chief Executive
Officer and the Chief Executive Officer reports directly
to the Board. Key Management Personnel performance
appraisals are done annually.
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(j) Ensuring that the Finance Company has an appropriate succession plan for Key Management Personnel:

The Company has a succession plan in place covering
all Key Management Personnel which has to be approved by the Board.

(k) Meeting regularly with the Key Management
Personnel to review policies, establish lines of communication and monitor progress towards corporate
objectives;

The members of the Corporate Management regularly prepare reviews, make presentations and take part
in discussions on their areas of responsibility at Management Meetings, Board Sub Committee Meetings and
Board Meetings.
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Direction
No.

Reference to the Finance Companies
Corporate Governance
Direction No. 3 of 2008

Degree of Compliance

(l) Understanding the regulatory environment;

The Board reviews the Companies compliance with the
regulatory environment via monthly compliance reports submitted to the Board by the Compliance Officer/Management.
An effective relationship with the regulators is maintained by way of active participation by Chief Executive Officer at quarterly meetings and other trainings
and workshops conducted by the regulator.

(m) Exercising due diligence in the hiring and oversight of external auditors.

Company’s Articles of Association outline the process
of engaging the services of an External Auditor. As per
the Articles of association the External Auditor is appointed at the Annual General Meeting of the Company.
In line with the Audit Committee Charter the Board has
entrusted the Audit Committee with the responsibility
of engagement and oversight of the External Auditors.

2.02

The Board shall appoint the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer and define and approve the functions and responsibilities of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer in line with paragraph 7 of
this Direction.

The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company have been appointed by the Board and the
functions and responsibilities of the said have been
defined and approved by the Board in the “Functions
and Responsibilities of the Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer and Senior Director of UB Finance Company Limited”.
The Chairman is responsible for leading the Board and
Chief Executive Officer is in charge and responsible for
the overall Management of the Company.

2.03

There shall be a procedure determined by the Board
to enable Directors, upon reasonable request, to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Finance Company’s expense. The Board shall resolve to provide separate
independent professional advice to Directors to assist the relevant Director(s) to discharge the duties
to the Finance Company.

The Board has sought independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances as and when necessary
at the expense of the Company. A formal policy on this
will be developed.

2.04

A Director shall abstain from voting on any Board
resolution in relation to a matter in which he or any
of his relatives or a concern in which he has substantial interest, is interested, and he shall not be
counted in the quorum for the relevant agenda item
at the Board meeting.

Directors Interests and Shareholdings are disclosed at
monthly Board meetings, the minutes of the meetings
provide evidence that Directors abstained from voting
in such a situation and is not counted in the quorum.

2.05

The Board shall have a formal schedule of matters
specifically reserved to it for decision to ensure
that the direction and control of the Finance Company is firmly under its authority.

The Board has a formal schedule of matters specifically
reserved to it for decision which is defined in the “Code
of Corporate Governance” of the Company.
The Board has put in place Board Sub Committees, systems and controls to facilitate the effective discharge
of Board functions and to ensure that the direction and
control of the Company is firmly under Board control
and authority.

2.06

The Board shall, if it considers that the Finance
Company is, or is likely to be, unable to meet its obligations or is about to become insolvent or is about
to suspend payments due to depositors and other
creditors, forthwith inform the Director of the Department of Supervision of Non-Bank Financial Institutions of the situation of the Finance Company
prior to taking any decision or action.

During the period no such situation has arisen. In the
event of such a possibility the Board will take necessary actions to comply.
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Direction
No.

Reference to the Finance Companies
Corporate Governance
Direction No. 3 of 2008

Degree of Compliance

2.07

The Board shall include in the Finance Company’s
Annual Report, an annual corporate governance report setting out the compliance with this Direction.

This report serves the said requirement.

2.08

The Board shall adopt a scheme of self-assessment
to be undertaken by each Director annually, and
maintain records of such assessments.

The Company has adopted a scheme of self assessment
to be undertaken by each Director annually and is filed
with the Company Secretary.

3.00

Meetings of the Board

3.01

The Board shall meet at least twelve times a financial year at approximately monthly intervals. Obtaining the Board’s consent through the circulation
of written or electronic resolutions/papers shall be
avoided as far as possible.

The Board meets regularly at monthly intervals and
during the year the Board held twelve Board meetings.

3.02

The Board shall ensure that arrangements are in
place to enable all Directors to include matters and
proposals in the agenda for regular Board meetings
where such matters and proposals relate to the
promotion of business and the Management of risks
of the Finance Company.

All Board members are given an opportunity to include
matters and proposals in the agenda for discussion at
Board meetings. A formal procedure for this will be developed.

3.03

A notice of at least 7 days shall be given of a regular Board meeting to provide all Directors an opportunity to attend. For all other Board meetings, a
reasonable notice shall be given.

As a practice, Directors are given a notice of at least 7
days for regular Board Meetings.

3.04

A Director, who has not attended at least two-thirds
of the meetings in the period of 12 months immediately preceding or has not attended the immediately preceding three consecutive meetings held, shall
cease to be a Director. Provided that participation
at the Directors’ meetings through an alternate Director shall, however, be acceptable as attendance.

All Directors have attended at least a two thirds of
the meetings held during the year and no Director has
been absent for three consecutive regular Board meetings during the year 2012/13.

3.05

The Board shall appoint a Company Secretary
whose primary responsibilities shall be to handle
the secretarial services to the Board and shareholder meetings and to carry out other functions specified in the statutes and other regulations.

The Company Secretary of Union Bank of Colombo PLC,
the major shareholder, who has been appointed by the
Board serves as the Company Secretary of the Company. She also ensures that proper Board procedures are
followed and that applicable rules and regulations are
brought to the notice of the Board.

3.06

If the Chairman has delegated to the Company Secretary the function of preparing the agenda for a
Board meeting, the Company Secretary shall be responsible for carrying out such function.

The Agenda is prepared by the Company Secretary and
approved by the Chairman.

3.07

All Directors shall have access to advice and services of the Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable laws,
directions, rules and regulations are followed.

All the Directors have access to obtain advice and services from the Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable laws,
directions rules and regulations are followed.
Company will further improve the procedure for better
governance.

3.08

The Company Secretary shall maintain the minutes
of Board meetings and such minutes shall be open
for inspection at any reasonable time, on reasonable notice by any Director.

The Company Secretary maintains the minutes and the
minutes are open for inspection at any reasonable time
to any Director.
Company will further improve the procedure for better
governance.
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Direction
No.
3.09

Reference to the Finance Companies
Corporate Governance
Direction No. 3 of 2008
Minutes of Board meetings shall be recorded in sufficient detail so that it is possible to gather from
the minutes, as to whether the Board acted with
due care and prudence in performing its duties. The
minutes of a Board meeting shall clearly contain or
refer to the following:

Degree of Compliance
The Company Secretary maintains detailed minutes of
Board meetings covering these areas. Minutes are approved by the Chairman and the members of the Board.

(a) A summary of data and information used by the
Board in its deliberations;
(b) The matters considered by the Board;
(c) The fact-finding discussions and the issues of
contention or dissent which may illustrate whether
the Board was carrying out its duties with due care
and prudence;
(d) The explanations and confirmations of relevant executives which indicate compliance with the
Board’s strategies and policies and adherence to
relevant laws and regulations;
(e) The Board’s knowledge and understanding of
the risks to which the Finance Company is exposed
and an overview of the risk Management measures
adopted; and
(f) The decisions and Board resolutions.
4.00

Compositions Of the Board

4.01

Subject to the transitional provisions contained
herein, the number of Directors on the Board shall
not be less than 5 and not more than 13.

The number of Directors on the Board has not been less
than 5 or more than 13 during the Financial Year.

4.02

Subject to the transitional provisions contained
herein and subject to paragraph 5(1) of this Direction the total period of service of a Director other
than a Director who holds the position of Chief Executive Officer or executive Director shall not exceed nine years. The total period in office of a non
executive Director shall be inclusive of the total
period of service served by such Director up to the
date of this Direction.

The total period of service of all Non-Executive Directors does not exceed nine years.

4.03

Subject to the transitional provisions contained
herein, an employee of a Finance Company may be
appointed, elected or nominated as a Director of
the Finance Company (hereinafter referred to as an
“Executive Director”) provided that the number of
executive Directors shall not exceed one-half of the
number of Directors of the Board. In such an event,
one of the executive Directors shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

This situation has not arisen in 2012/13.
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Direction
No.
4.04

Reference to the Finance Companies
Corporate Governance
Direction No. 3 of 2008
With effect from three years from the date of this
Direction, the number of Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Board shall be at least one
fourth of the total numbers of Directors. A Non-Executive Director shall not be considered independent if such Director:

Degree of Compliance
The number of Independent Non-Executive Directors of
the Board is more than one fourth of the total number
of Directors.

a) has shares exceeding 2% of the paid up capital of
the Finance Company or 10% of the paid up capital
of another Finance Company;
b) has or had during the period of two years immediately preceding his appointment as Director, any
business transactions with the Finance Company as
described in paragraph 9 hereof, aggregate value
outstanding of which at any particular time exceeds
10% of the capital funds of the Finance Company as
shown in its last audited balance sheet;
c) has been employed by the Finance Company during the two year period immediately preceding the
appointment as Director;
d) has a relative, who is a Director or Chief Executive Officer or a Key Management Personnel or
holds shares exceeding 10% of the paid up capital
of the Finance Company or exceeding 12.5% of the
paid up capital of another Finance Company.
e) represents a shareholder, debtor, or such other
similar stakeholder of the Finance Company;
f) is an employee or a Director or has a share holding of 10% or more of the paid up capital in a Company or business organization:
i.) which has a transaction with the Finance Company as defined in paragraph 9, aggregate value outstanding of which at any particular time exceeds
10% of the capital funds as shown in its last audited
balance sheet of the Finance Company; or
ii.) in which any of the other Directors of the Finance Company is employed or is a Director or holds
shares exceeding 10% of the capital funds as shown
in its last audited balance sheet of the Finance
Company; or
iii.) in which any of the other Directors of the Finance Company has a transaction as defined in
paragraph 9, aggregate value outstanding of which
at any particular time exceeds 10% of the capital
funds, as shown in its last audited balance sheet of
the Finance Company.
4.05

In the event an alternate Director is appointed to
represent an Independent Non-Executive Director,
the person so appointed shall also meet the criteria
that apply to the Independent Non-Executive Director.

This situation has not arisen in 2012/13.

4.06

Non-Executive Directors shall have necessary skills
and experience to bring an objective judgment to
bear on issues of strategy, performance and resources.

The Directors are eminent persons with knowledge,
expertise and experience in different business sectors
which has added diversity and brought about better
judgment in matters relating to Strategy, Performance
and Resources.
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No.

Reference to the Finance Companies
Corporate Governance
Direction No. 3 of 2008

Degree of Compliance

4.07

With effect from three years from the date of this
Direction, a meeting of the Board shall not be duly
constituted, although the number of Directors required to constitute the quorum at such meeting is
present, unless at least one half of the number of
Directors that constitute the quorum at such meeting are Non-Executive Directors.

All the Board meetings held during the financial year
are duly constituted with more than one half of the
number of Non-Executive Directors being present at
such meetings.

4.08

The Independent Non-Executive Directors shall be
expressly identified as such in all corporate communications that disclose the names of Directors of
the Finance Company. The Finance Company shall
disclose the composition of the Board, by category
of Directors, including the names of the Chairman,
executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Non-Executive Directors in the annual
corporate governance report which shall be an integral part of its Annual Report.

The details of the Chairman, Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors are disclosed in the “Annual Report of
the Board of Directors on the affairs of the Company”.

4.09

There shall be a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new Directors to
the Board. There shall also be procedures in place
for the orderly succession of appointments to the
Board.

Company’s Articles of Association address the procedure for appointment and removal of Directors.
Company will further improve the procedure for better
governance.

4.10

All Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy
shall be subject to election by Shareholders at the
first general meeting after their appointment.

All Directors appointed to the Board are subject to
re-election by the Shareholders at the first Annual
General Meeting after their appointment. The Articles
of Association addresses the procedure to fill a casual
vacancy subject to their appointment.

4.11

If a Director resigns or is removed from office, the
Board shall announce to the Shareholders and notify the Director of the Department of Supervision of
Non-Bank Financial Institutions of the Central Bank
of Sri Lanka, regarding the resignation of the Director or removal and the reasons for such resignation
or removal, including but not limited to information
relating to the relevant Director’s disagreement
with the Board, if any.

The Board announces such situations to the shareholders at the AGM.
Cessation of office of the Directors have been duly
communicated to the Director of Supervision of Non
Bank Financial Institutions of the Central Bank of Sri
Lanka and other regulatory authorities.

5.00

Criteria to assess the fitness and propriety of
Directors

5.01

Subject to the transitional provisions contained
herein, a person over the age of 70 years shall not
serve as a Director of a Finance Company.

All the Directors are bellow the age of 70 years and the
Company Secretary monitors the compliance.

5.02

A Director of a Finance Company shall not hold office as a Director or any other equivalent position
in more than 20 companies/societies/bodies corporate, including associate companies and subsidiaries of the Finance Company. Provided that such Director shall not hold office of a Director or any other
equivalent position in more than 10 companies that
are classified as Specified Business Entities in terms
of the Sri Lanka Accounting and Auditing Standards
Act, No. 15 of 1995.

The total number of positions held by a Director or any
other equivalent position in companies, societies, body
corporate including subsidiaries or Associate Companies of the Finance Company is less than 20.
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Direction
No.

Reference to the Finance Companies
Corporate Governance
Direction No. 3 of 2008

Degree of Compliance

6.00

Delegation of Functions

6.01

The Board shall not delegate any matters to a
Board committee, Chief Executive Officer, executive
Directors or Key Management Personnel, to an extent that such delegation would significantly hinder or reduce the ability of the Board as a whole to
discharge its functions.

All delegations are made in a manner that would not
hinder the Board’s ability to discharge its functions.

6.02

The Board shall review the delegation processes in
place on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain
relevant to the needs of the Finance Company.

The delegated powers are reviewed periodically by the
Board to ensure that they remain relevant to the needs
of the Company.

7.00

The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

7.01

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
shall be separated and shall not be performed by
the one and the same person after 3 years commencing from January 1, 2009.

There is a clear separation of duties between the roles
of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer. These
positions are held by two separate individuals who
have been appointed by the Board.

7.02

The Chairman shall be a Non-Executive Director. In
the case where the Chairman is not an Independent
Non-Executive Director, the Board shall designate
an Independent Non-Executive Director as the Senior Director with suitably documented terms of reference to ensure a greater independent element.
The designation of the Senior Director shall be disclosed in the Finance Company’s Annual Report.

During the period of review as the Chairman was not
an Independent Director the Board designated an Independent Non-Executive Director as the Senior Director.
The Senior Directors details are disclosed in the Annual
Report.

7.03

The Board shall disclose in its corporate governance
report, which shall be an integral part of its Annual Report, the name of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer and the nature of any relationship
[including financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship(s)], if any, between the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer and the
relationships among members of the Board.

The Board is not aware of any relationships whatsoever, including financial, business, family, any other
material relationship between the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer.
Company will further improve the procedure to identify
and disclose relationships for better governance.

7.04

TheChairmanshall:
(a) provide leadership to the Board
(b)ensure that the Board works
effectively and discharges its responsibilities;
and
(c) ensure that all key issues are discussed by the
Board in a timely manner.

The Chairman provides leadership to the Board; and
ensures that the Board works effectively when discharging its responsibilities; and that all key issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner.
The Board has a scheme of self assessment for the
Board of Directors. The Company will further improve
the self assessment scheme for better governance.

7.05

The Chairman shall be primarily responsible for the
preparation of the agenda for each Board meeting.
The Chairman may delegate the function of preparing the agenda to the Company Secretary.

The Chairman & The Board of Directors have delegated
this function to the Company Secretary who prepares
and circulates the agenda prior to the Board Meeting.
This agenda is approved by the Chairman of the Board.

7.06

The Chairman shall ensure that all Directors are informed adequately and in a timely manner of the
issues arising at each Board meeting.

The Chairman ensures that all the Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board Meetings by submission of the agenda and Board papers with sufficient
time prior to the meeting.

18

Annual Report 2012/13

Direction
No.

Reference to the Finance Companies
Corporate Governance
Direction No. 3 of 2008

Degree of Compliance

7.07

The Chairman shall encourage each Director to
make a full and active contribution to the Board’s
affairs and take the lead to ensure that the Board
acts in the best interests of the Finance Company.

The Chairman encourages all Directors to actively participate in Board affairs.

7.08

The Chairman shall facilitate the effective contribution of Non-Executive Directors in particular and
ensure constructive relationships between executive and Non-Executive Directors.

The Chairman facilitates the effective contribution of
all Directors,. Executive and Non-Executive Directors
work together in the best interest of the Company.
The self evaluation process also covers the contribution of Non-executive Directors.

7.09

Subject to the transitional provisions contained
herein, the Chairman, shall not engage in activities
involving direct supervision of Key Management
Personnel or any other executive duties whatsoever.

The Chairman is a Non-Executive Director and the
Chairman does not directly get involved in the supervision of Key Management Personnel or engage in any
other executive duties.

7. 10

The Chairman shall ensure that appropriate steps
are taken to maintain effective communication with
Shareholders and that the views of Shareholders
are communicated to the Board.

The AGM of the Company is the main forum where the
Board maintains effective communication with Shareholders and that the views of Shareholders are communicated to the Board. Adequate time is allocated to
the Shareholders to raise any questions at Shareholder
meetings. All queries are answered by Chairman, the
Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer and other
Key Management Personnel.

7.11

The Chief Executive Officer shall function as the
apex executive-in-charge of the day-to-day-Management of the Finance Company’s operations and
business.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the dayto-day operations and business of the Company.

8.00

Board appointed Committees

8.01

Every Finance Company shall have at least the two
Board committees set out in paragraphs 8(2) and
8(3) hereof. Each committee shall report directly
to the Board. Each committee shall appoint a secretary to arrange its meetings, maintain minutes,
records and carry out such other secretarial functions under the supervision of the Chairman of the
committee. The Board shall present a report on the
performance, duties and functions of each committee, at the annual general meeting of the Company.

The following Board sub committees have been appointed by the Board;
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

Integrated Risk Management Committee
Board Audit Committee
Board Strategic Planning Committee
Board Credit Committee
Board HR & Remuneration Committee
Board IT Committee
Board Land / Deed Committee

Reports of such committees are submitted to the Board
for review.

8.02

Audit committee
The following shall apply in relation to the Audit
Committee:

A

The Chairman of the committee shall be a Non-Executive Director who possesses qualifications and
experience in accountancy and/or audit.

The Chairman of the Board Audit Committee is an Independent Non-Executive Director who is an associate
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Sri Lanka.

B

The Board members appointed to the committee
shall be Non-Executive Directors.

All the members of the Board Audit Committee are
Non-Executive Directors.
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Corporate Governance
Direction No. 3 of 2008

Degree of Compliance

C

The committee shall make recommendations on
matters in connection with:
(i) the appointment of the external auditor for audit
services to be provided in compliance with the relevant statutes;
(ii) the implementation of the Central Bank
guidelines issued to auditors from time to time;
(iii) the application of the relevant accounting
standards; and
(iv) the service period, audit fee and any resignation or dismissal of the auditor, provided that the
engagement of an audit partner shall not exceed
five years, and that the particular audit partner is
not re-engaged for the audit before the expiry of
three years from the date of the completion of the
previous term.

Appointment of External Auditors for audit services is
made at the AGM and the Board ensures compliance
with applicable legal and statutory requirements. The
evaluation is carried out by the Board Audit Committee
in relation to the Central Bank of Sri Lanka Directions
& Guidelines. All matters regarding Central Bank of
Sri Lanka Directions & Guidelines and new Accounting
Standards are discussed and advised to the Board and
Management by the Audit Committee and the Management implements same. The Committee ensures that
the requirement of rotation of External Audit Engagement Partner once in every 5 years is met. The Audit
Committee has the primary responsibility for making
recommendations on the appointment, re-appointment
or removal of the External Auditor in line with professional standards and regulatory requirements.

D

The committee shall review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit processes in accordance
with applicable standards and best practices.

External Auditors are independent and report directly
to the Board Audit Committee of the Company.

The committee shall develop and implement a policy
with the approval of the Board on the engagement
of an external auditor to provide non-audit services that are permitted under the relevant statutes,
regulations, requirements and guidelines. In doing
so, the committee shall ensure that the provision
by an external auditor of non-audit services does
not impair the external auditor’s independence or
objectivity. When assessing the external auditor’s
independence or objectivity in relation to the provision of non-audit services, the committee shall
consider:

The Company has a procedure for engagement of external professionals for advise and services required
by the Company from time to time as given in the “Code
of Corporate Governance”, however it is not specific
with regard to the engagement of External Auditors
for non-audit services, as such Company will further
improve the procedure for better governance.
The following is considered prior to the assignment of
non-audit services to External Auditors by the Company:

Direction
No.

E

(i) whether the skills and experience of the auditor
make it a suitable provider of the non-audit services;
(ii) whether there are safeguards in place to ensure
that there is no threat to the objectivity and/or independence in the conduct of the audit resulting
from the provision of such services by the external
auditor; and
(iii) whether the nature of the non-audit services,
the related fee levels and the fee levels individually and in aggregate relative to the auditor, pose
any threat to the objectivity and/or independence
of the external auditor.
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The External Auditors have submitted a report on the
process adopted by the Directors on the system of Internal Controls over Financial Reporting. Further improvements and matters addressed by the External
Auditors in this respect, are being looked into.

(a) If the Management is of the view that the independence is likely to be impaired with the assignment
of any non-audit services to External Auditors, no assignment will be made to obtain such services.
(b) Assigning such non-audit services to External Auditors is discussed at Audit Committee Meeting and required approval is obtained to that effect.
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The committee shall, before the audit commences,
discuss and finalise with the external auditors the
nature and scope of the audit, including:
(i) an assessment of the Finance Company’s compliance with Directions issued under the Act and
the Management’s internal controls over financial
reporting;
(ii) the preparation of financial statements in accordance with relevant accounting principles and
reporting obligations; and
(iii) the co-ordination between auditors where more
than one auditor is involved.

G

The committee shall review the financial information of the Finance Company, in order to monitor
the integrity of the financial statements of the Finance Company, its annual report, accounts and
periodical reports prepared for disclosure, and the
significant financial reporting judgments contained
therein. In reviewing the Finance Company’s annual
report and accounts and periodical reports before
submission to the Board, the committee shall focus
particularly on:

Degree of Compliance
The Auditors make a presentation at the Board Audit
Committee Meeting with details of the proposed Audit
Plan and the Scope. Members of the Board Audit Committee obtain clarifications in respect of the contents
of the presentation if deemed necessary. The Committee has discussed and finalized the nature and scope of
the audit, with the external auditors.

Financial Statements are circulated to all members of
the Board Audit Committee. A detailed discussion takes
place covering these areas at the Board Audit Committee meetings regarding such Financial Statements. The
members of the Board Audit Committee have obtained
required clarifications in respect of all aspects included in the Financial Statements. Such Financial Statements are recommended for approval by the Board of
Directors.

(i) major judgmental areas;
(ii) any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(iii) significant adjustments arising from the adit;
(iv) the going concern assumption; and
(v) the compliance with relevant accounting standards and other legal requirements.
H

The committee shall discuss issues, problems and
reservations arising from the interim and final audits, and any matters the auditor may wish to discuss including those matters that may need to be
discussed in the absence of Key Management Personnel, if necessary.

The Board Audit Committee has met and had discussions with the External Auditors without the presence
of the Executive Management.

I

The committee shall review the external auditor’s
Management letter and the Management’s response thereto.

Upon receipt of the year end Management Letter Auditors will be invited to make a presentation at an Board
Audit Committee meeting to discuss significant findings
which have arisen during the audit. Thereafter, the
Board Audit Committee will decide on remedial action
if any to be taken in respect of such findings and relevant Heads of Departments will be instructed to take
such action.
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Reference to the Finance Companies
Corporate Governance
Direction No. 3 of 2008
The committee shall take the following steps with
regard to the internal audit function of the Finance
Company:
(i) Review the adequacy of the scope, functions and
resources of the internal audit department, and
satisfy itself that the department has the necessary authority to carry out its work;
(ii) Review the internal audit program and results
of the internal audit process and, where necessary,
ensure that appropriate actions are taken on the
recommendations of the internal audit department;
(iii) Review any appraisal or assessment of the performance of the head and senior staff members of
the internal audit department;
(iv) Recommend any appointment or termination
of the head, senior staff members and outsourced
service providers to the internal audit function;
(v) Ensure that the committee is apprised of resignations of senior staff members of the internal audit
department including the chief internal auditor and
any outsourced service providers, and to provide an
opportunity to the resigning senior staff members
and outsourced service providers to submit reasons
for resigning;
(vi)Ensure that the internal audit function is independent of the activities it audits and that it is
performed with impartiality, proficiency and due
professional care;

Degree of Compliance
The Board Audit Committee has discussed and reviewed
the findings of the Internal Audit Reports prepared by
M/s. Tudor V. Perera & Co., Chartered Accountants for
the period of 1st April 2012 to 30th September 2012..
The Board has resolved to recruit a Internal Audit Manager to the permanent carder of the Company and outsource the Internal Audit function to M/s. KPMG for a
period of one year. Both the Internal Audit Manager
and M/s. KPMG will report to the Audit Committee with
a dotted line to the Chief Executive Officer.

K

The committee shall consider the major findings of
internal investigations and Management’s responses thereto;

The committee considers the major findings of internal audit investigations and Management’s responses
thereto.

L

The chief finance officer, the chief internal auditor
and a representative of the external auditors may
normally attend meetings. Other Board members
and the Chief Executive Officer may also attend
meetings upon the invitation of the committee.
However, at least once in six months, the committee
shall meet with the external auditors without the
executive Directors being present.

Other Board members and the Chief Executive Officer
also attend meetings upon the invitation of the committee. The Committee has met the External Auditors
without the Executive Management present.

M

The committee shall have:
(i) explicit authority to investigate into
any matter within its terms of reference;
(ii) the resources which it needs to do so;
(iii) full access to information; and
(iv) authority to obtain external professional advice
and to invite outsiders with relevant experience to
attend, if necessary.

The Board Audit Committee is guided by a Board approved “Terms of Reference” which sets out authority
and responsibility of the said Committee. The Board
Audit Committee is authorized to obtain external professional advice and to invite outsiders with relevant
experience to attend if necessary. The Board Audit
Committee also has full access to information in order to investigate into matters relating to any matter
within its terms of reference.

N

The committee shall meet regularly, with due notice of issues to be discussed and shall record its
conclusions in discharging its duties and responsibilities.

The Committee meets regularly and the audit reports
were issued to its members in advance.
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Direction
No.

Reference to the Finance Companies
Corporate Governance
Direction No. 3 of 2008

Degree of Compliance

O

The Board shall, in the Annual Report, disclose in an
informative way,
(i) details of the activities of the audit committee;
(ii) the number of audit committee meetings held in
the year; and
(iii) details of attendance of each individual member at such meetings.

Complied with.

P

The secretary to the committee (who may be the
Company Secretary or the head of the internal audit function) shall record and keep detailed minutes
of the committee meetings.

The Company Secretary acts as the secretary of the
Audit Committee and records and maintains all minutes
of the meetings.

Q

The committee shall review arrangements by which
employees of the Finance Company may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters. Accordingly, the committee shall ensure that
proper arrangements are in place for the fair and
independent investigation of such matters and for
appropriate follow-up action and to act as the key
representative body for overseeing the Finance
Company’s relations with the external auditor

The Company has introduced a “Whistle Blowing Policy” by which employees of the Finance Company may,
in confidence, raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters. Accordingly, the Board Audit Committee ensures that proper arrangements are in place for the
fair and independent investigation of such matters
and for appropriate follow-up action. The Board Audit
Committee also act as the key representative body for
overseeing the Finance Company’s relations with the
External Auditor.

8.03

Integrated Risk Management Committee
The following shall apply in relation to the
Integrated Risk Management Committee:

A

The committee shall consist of at least one Non-Executive Director, Chief Executive Officer and Key
Management Personnel supervising broad risk categories, i.e., credit, market, liquidity, operational
and strategic risks. The committee shall work with
Key Management Personnel closely and make decisions on behalf of the Board within the framework
of the authority and responsibility assigned to the
committee.

The Integrated Risk Management Committee consists
of four Non Executive Directors, Chief Executive Officer,
Deputy General Manager and Senior Manager Finance.

B

The committee shall assess all risks, i.e., credit,
market, liquidity, operational and strategic risks to
the Finance Company on a monthly basis through
appropriate risk indicators and Management information. In the case of subsidiary companies and associate companies, risk Management shall be done,
both on the Finance Company basis and group basis.

The Company has developed a “Monthly Risk Reporting and Managing Procedure” to assess the risks on a
monthly basis. This process will be further strengthened to cover all other risks such as market, liquidity and environmental risks etc. on a monthly basis
through appropriate risk indicators and management
information.

C

The committee shall review the adequacy and effectiveness of all Management level committees
such as the credit committee and the asset-liability
committee to address specific risks and to manage
those risks within quantitative and qualitative risk
limits as specified by the
committee.

The Integrated Risk Management Committee reviews
adequacy and effectiveness of the credit committee.
Quantitative and qualitative risk limits have been set
which will be further improved in the following financial year.

D

The committee shall take prompt corrective action
to mitigate the effects of specific risks in the case
such risks are at levels beyond the prudent levels
decided by the committee on the basis of the Finance Company’s policies and regulatory and supervisory requirements

The risk indicators introduced has been reviewed
against the benchmark as well as the tolerance levels.
This process will be further strengthened in the coming
financial year for further improvement of the risk management of the Company
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Reference to the Finance Companies
Corporate Governance
Direction No. 3 of 2008

Degree of Compliance

E

The committee shall meet at least quarterly to assess all aspects of risk Management including updated business continuity plans.

The Integrated Risk Management Committee has had
only one meeting during the Financial Year and will
move towards compliance in the next Financial Year.

F

The committee shall take appropriate actions
against the officers responsible for failure to identify specific risks and take prompt corrective actions
as recommended by the committee, and/or as directed by the Director of the Department of Supervision of Non-Bank Financial Institutions of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka.

The Integrated Risk Management Committee has a process in place for the Management to identify, report
and take corrective action on specific risks faced by
the Company. Any failures/noncompliances in this regard will be referred to the HR Department for necessary action.

G

The committee shall submit a risk assessment report within a week of each meeting to the Board
seeking the Board’s views, concurrence and/or specific directions.

The Integrated Risk Management Committee has kept
the Board informed of their risk assessment of the
Company by forwarding a risk report.

H

The committee shall establish a compliance function to assess the Finance Company’s compliance
with laws, regulations, directions, rules, regulatory
guidelines, internal controls and approved policies
on all areas of business operations. A dedicated
compliance officer selected from Key Management
Personnel shall carry out the compliance function
and report to the committee periodically.

The Company’s compliance with laws and regulations
were monitored by the Compliance Officer, Integrated
Risk Management Committee and Audit Committee.

9.00

Related party transactions

9.01

The following shall be in addition to the provisions
contained in the Finance Companies (Lending) Direction, No. 1 of 2007 and the Finance Companies
(Business Transactions with Directors and their Relatives) Direction, No. 2 of 2007 or such other directions that shall repeal and replace the said directions from time to time.

9.02

The Board shall take the necessary steps to avoid
any conflicts of interest that may arise from any
transaction of the Finance Company with any person, and particularly with the following categories
of persons who shall be considered as “related parties” for the purposes of this Direction:
a) A subsidiary of the Finance Company;
b) Any associate Company of the Finance
Company;
c) A Director of the Finance Company;
d) A Key Management Personnel of the Finance
Company;
e) A relative of a Director or a Key Management Personnel of the Finance Company ;
f) A shareholder who owns shares exceeding 10% of
the paid up capital of the Finance Company;
g) A concern in which a Director of the Finance Company or a relative of a Director or a shareholder who
owns shares exceeding 10% of the paid up capital
of the Finance Company, has substantial interest

Direction
No.
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The “Code of Corporate Governance” approved by the
Board covers the definition of related parties and how
to handle transactions entered into with related parties.
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Direction
No.
9.03

Reference to the Finance Companies
Corporate Governance
Direction No. 3 of 2008
The transactions with a related party that are covered in this Direction shall be the following:
a) Granting accommodation,
b) Creating liabilities to the Finance Company in the
form of deposits, borrowings and investments,
c) providing financial or non-financial services to
the Finance Company or obtaining those services
from the Finance Company,
d) creating or maintaining reporting lines and information flows between the Finance Company and
any related party which may lead to share proprietary, confidential or otherwise sensitive information that may give benefits to such related party.

9.04

The Board shall ensure that the Finance Company
does not engage in transactions with a related party in a manner that would grant such party “more
favourable treatment” than that is accorded to other similar constituents of the Finance Company. For
the purpose of this paragraph, “more favourable
treatment” shall mean:

Degree of Compliance
Transactions carried out with Related Parties in the
normal course of business are disclosed in the Financial Statements on ‘Related Party Disclosures’.
The Company is in the process of improving the
monitoring mechan ism in this regard.

The Company has not engaged in transactions with a
related parties in a manner that has granted such parties a “more favourable treatment” than that is accorded to other similar constituents of the Company.

a) Granting of “total net accommodation” to a related party, exceeding a prudent percentage of the Finance Company’s regulatory capital, as determined
by the Board. The “total net accommodation” shall
be computed by deducting from the total accommodation, the cash collateral and investments made
by such related party in the Finance Company’s
share capital and debt instruments with a remaining maturity of 5 years or more.
b) Charging of a lower rate of interest than the Finance Company’s best lending rate or paying a rate
of interest exceeding the rate paid for a comparable
transaction with an unrelated comparable counterparty;
c)
Providing
preferential
treatment,
such
as favourable terms, covering trade losses and/or waiving fees/commissions, that extends beyond the terms granted in the normal course of business with unrelated parties;
d) Providing or obtaining services to or from a related-party without a proper evaluation procedure;
e) Maintaining reporting lines and information
flows between the Finance Company and any related party which may lead to share proprietary,
confidential or otherwise sensitive information that
may give benefits to such related party, except as
required for the performance of legitimate duties
and functions.

10.00

Disclosures

10.01

The Board shall ensure that:
(a) annual audited financial statements and periodical financial statements are prepared and published in accordance with the formats prescribed by
the regulatory and supervisory authorities and applicable accounting standards, and that
(b) such statements are published in the newspapers in an abridged form, in Sinhala, Tamil and English.

Audited Financial Statements for 2012/13 were prepared and will be published in the News Papers in all
three languages in accordance with the formats prescribed by the supervisory and regulatory authorities
and applicable accounting standards.
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Direction
No.
10.2

Reference to the Finance Companies
Corporate Governance
Direction No. 3 of 2008
The Board shall ensure that at least the following
disclosures are made in the Annual Report:
a) A statement to the effect that the annual audited financial statements have been prepared in line
with applicable accounting standards and regulatory requirements, inclusive of specific disclosures.
b) A report by the Board on the Finance Company’s
internal control mechanism that confirms that the
financial reporting system has been designed to
provide a reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting, and that the preparation of financial statements has been done in accordance with relevant accounting principles and
regulatory requirements.
c) The external auditor’s certification on the effectiveness of the internal control mechanism in respect of any statements prepared or published after March 31, 2010.
d) Details of Directors, including names, transactions with the Finance Company.
e) Fees/remuneration paid by the Finance Company
to the Directors in aggregate, in the Annual Reports
published after January 1, 2010.
f) Total net accommodation as defined in paragraph
9(4) outstanding in respect of each category of related parties and the net accommodation outstanding in respect of each category of related parties
as a percentage of the Finance Company’s capital
funds.
g) The aggregate values of remuneration paid by
the Finance Company to its Key Management Personnel and the aggregate values of the transactions of the Finance Company with its Key Management Personnel during the financial year, set out
by broad categories such as remuneration paid, accommodation granted and deposits or investments
made in the Finance Company.
h) A report setting out details of the compliance
with prudential requirements, regulations, laws and
internal controls and measures taken to rectify any
non-compliances
i) A statement of the regulatory and supervisory
concerns on lapses in the Finance Company’s risk
Management, or non compliance with the Act, and
rules and directions that have been communicated
by the Director of the Department of Supervision
of Non-Bank Financial Institutions, if so directed by
the Monetary Board to be disclosed to the public,
together with the measures taken by the Finance
Company to address such concerns.
j) The external auditor’s certification of the compliance with the Act and rules and directions issued by
the Monetary Board in the annual corporate governance reports published after January 1, 2011.
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Degree of Compliance

a) Disclosed in the “Annual Report of the Board of Directors on the State of Affairs of the Company”
b) Disclosed in the “Directors Statement on Internal
Controls Over Financial Reporting”

c) Board has obtained a certification from External Auditors on the effectiveness of the internal controls over
financial reporting.
d) Details of Directors have been disclosed in the “Annual Report of the Board of Directors on the State of
Affairs of the Company.
e) Disclosed in Note No. 35.1 of the port 2012/13 Financials 2 uunder “Transactions with Related Pary.
f) There are no accommodation as defined in paragraph
9(4) outstanding in respect of each category of related
parties.

g) Disclosed in Note No. 35.1 & 35.2 of the 2012/13 Financials under “Transactions with Related Parties”.

h) Disclosed in the “Directors statement on internal
controls over financial reporting” and “The Annual Report of the Board of Directors on the state of affairs of
the Company”.
i) There are no non complianees requirering disclosure.

j) The external auditors’ certification on the compliance with corporate governance direction issued by
the Monitory Board has been obtained.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
Composition & Performance
At the end of the year, the Audit Committee as appointed
by the Board comprised of the following independent Non
Executive Directors of the Company.

Formal confirmations and assurances have been received
from the senior Management of the company on a monthly
basis, regarding the efficacy and status of the internal control systems and risk management systems, and compliance
with applicable laws and regulations.
External Audit

- Chairman
- Member
- Member
- Member

The Audit Committee met the external auditors with Management during the course of the external audit to ensure
that the financial statements complied with accounting
standards and other relevant laws and regulations.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee, an Independent Non
Executive Director is an associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and possess considerable experience in the field of finance and administration.
The Company Secretary functioned as the Secretary to the
Audit Committee for the year ended 31 March 2013. The Chief
Executive Officer, Senior Manager-Finance, the Deputy General Manager and other Senior Managers attended meetings
by invitation as necessary to brief the Audit Committee on
specific matters. The External Auditors also attended meetings by invitation as necessary.
The activities and views of the Committee have been communicated to the Board of Directors monthly through verbal
briefings, formal updates and by tabling the minutes of the
Committee’s meetings.
Attendance of Committee members at each meeting is given
in the table on page 10 of the Annual Report.

The External Auditors kept the Committee advised on an
on-going basis regarding any unresolved matters of significance. Before the conclusion of the audit, the Committee
met with the External Auditors and the Management to discuss all significant audit issues and to agree on the remedial
action to be taken with regard to closure. The Committee also
met the External Auditors without the Management being
present, prior to the finalization of the financial statements.
The Audit Committee was satisfied with the independence
demonstrated by the external auditors, their independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process.

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

Daman Panditaratne
Ananda Atukorala
Davis Golding
Nalin Fernando

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board of Directors that M/s. Ernst & Young, Chartered Accountants be
reappointed for the financial year ending 31 March, 2014
subject to the approval of shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on 30th September 2013.

The Role of the Audit Committee
Financial Reporting
The Committee reviewed and discussed with the Management and the external auditors the appropriateness of
critical accounting policies and material judgmental matters where judgment was applied, the practices and related
changes thereto, financial reporting controls, and the extent
of compliance with accounting policies in particular, with
the transition this year to the Sri Lanka Financial Reporting
Standards (SLFRS) on which basis the 31 March 2013 Financial Statements have been prepared.
This is the first year in which the financial statements have
been presented in compliance with the new Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLFRS/LKAS), which have materially
converged with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). Professional opinion has been obtained in identifying the gaps and much effort has gone into ensuring that
this transition has taken place effectively.
In discharging it’s responsibilities the Committee places reliance on the professional opinion obtained from a firm of
Chartered Accountants, management representation to the
extent and in the manner it considers appropriate and the
views of the External Auditors in recommending the financial
statements for approval by the Board.

Daman Panditaratne
Chairman - Board Audit Committee

Internal Audit and Internal Controls
The Company’s Internal Audit is carried out by a professional
accounting firm.
The Audit Committee determines with the Internal Auditor
the plan and the scope of the work. The Audit Committee
reviews with management the reports written by the Internal Auditor on audits carried out. The deficiencies and lapses
reported by the Internal Auditor are discussed with management and recommendations given by the Internal Auditor
are implemented.
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DIRECTORS STATEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

the Internal Audit Function of the Company for suitability of
design and effectiveness on an on-going basis.

RESPONSIBILITY

As the current year was the first year of adopting new Sri
Lanka Accounting Standards comprising LKAS and SLFRS
processes to comply with new requirements of recognition,
measurement, classification and disclosure were introduced.

In line with the Finance Companies Direction No. 03 of 2008,
section 10(2)(b), the Board of Directors present this report
on Internal Control over Financial Reporting.
The Board of Directors (“Board”) is responsible for the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control mechanism
in place at UB Finance Company Limited (“Company”). The
Board has established an ongoing process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the
Company and this process includes the system of Internal
Control over Financial Reporting. The process is regularly
reviewed by the Board.
The Board is of the view that the system of Internal Control over Financial Reporting in place is adequate to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of Financial
Reporting, and that the preparation of Financial Statements
for external purposes is in accordance with relevant accounting principles and regulatory requirements.
The Management assists the Board in the implementation
of the Board’s policies and procedures pertaining to Internal Controls over Financial Reporting. The Management has
started the process of documenting the system of Internal
Control over Financial Reporting and the processes identified so far have not revealed significant weaknesses over
such controls for financial reporting.
In assessing the Internal Control System over Financial Reporting, identified officers of the Company collated all procedures and controls that are connected with significant
accounts and disclosures of the Financial Statements of the
Company. These in turn will be observed and checked by

CONFIRMATION
Based on the above processes, the Board confirms that the
Financial Reporting System of the Company has been designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of Financial Reporting and the preparation of Financial
Statements for external purposes and has been done in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards and regulatory requirements of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka.
In view of the transition and the numerous legacy issues
prevailing at the time of acquisition; the Directors are in the
process of taking the required action to re-design, further
strengthen, and align the financial reporting system and
preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards and
regulatory requirements of the Central Bank prevailing currently.
EXTERNAL AUDITORS CERTIFICATION
The External Auditors have submitted a certification on the
process adopted by the Directors on the system of Internal
Controls over Financial Reporting. Further improvements
and matters addressed by the External Auditors in this respect, are being looked into.

By order of the Board

Alexis Lovell			Malinda Samaratunga				Daman Panditaratne
Chairman 			
Director				
Director / Chairman - Audit Committee
(Signed by the Directors who have signed the Financial Statements and the Chairman of the Board Audit Committee)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

APAG/APSM/AD

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF UB FINANCE COMPANY
LIMITED
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of
UB Finance Company Limited (“Company”), which comprise
the statements of financial position as at 31 March 2013,
the income statement statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and Statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards. This responsibility includes:
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We have obtained all the information and explanations
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit. We therefore believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, so far as appears from our examination, the
Company maintained proper accounting records for the year
ended 31 March 2013 and the financial statements give a
true and fair view of the Company’s financial position as at
31 March 2013 and its financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
These financial statements also comply with the requirements of Sections 151(2) of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

Scope of Audit and Basis of Opinion
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

07 August 2013
Colombo
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UB Finance Company Limited

INCOME STATEMENT

Year ended 31 March 2013
Notes

2013

2012

Rs.

Rs.

Income

4

241,077,424

172,152,724

Interest income

4

233,590,684

168,822,880

Interest expenses

4

142,408,811

248,507,707

Net interest income

4

91,181,872

(79,684,827)

Fee and commission income

4

5,498,991

1,580,588

Fee and commission expenses

4

(1,911,206)

(587,320)

Net fee and commission income

4

3,587,785

993,269

Other operating income (net)

5

1,987,750

1,749,255

96,757,407

(76,942,303)

(25,293,714)

(270,522,210)

Fair value losses on Real Estate

(3,704,396)

(175,016,816)

Net operating income

67,759,297

(522,481,329)

Total operating income

Impairment losses on Loans and Receivables

6

Staff costs

7

(40,797,727)

(25,665,469)

Depreciation of Property, Plant & Equipment

15

(4,250,015)

(4,186,448)

Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets

17

(610,948)

(1,198,453)

Other expenses

8

(89,840,950)

(80,350,787)

(67,740,344)

(633,882,486)

(313,063)

(2,212,176)

(68,053,406)

(636,094,662)

199,347,228

(2,779,772)

131,293,822

(638,874,434)

0.08

(0.36)

Operating profit/(loss) before value added tax (VAT)

Value added tax (VAT) on financial services
Profit/(loss) before tax
Tax expense

9

Profit/(loss) for the year

Earnings/(Loss) Per Share

10

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 35 through 75 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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UB Finance Company Limited

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Year ended 31 March 2013
In Rupees

Notes

Profit/(Loss) for the year

2013

2012

Rs.

Rs.

131,293,822

(638,874,434)

Gains and losses on re-measuring available-for-sale
financial assets

209,117

-

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of taxes

209,117

-

131,502,939

(638,874,434)

Other comprehensive income/(expenses)

Total comprehensive income for the year

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 35 through 75 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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UB Finance Company Limited

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Year ended 31 March 2013
In Rupees

Notes

Assets

2013

2012

2011

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Cash in hand and balances with Banks

11

121,698,199

36,579,616

34,767,300

Cash collateral on securities borrowed & reverse
repurchased agreements

12

131,231,145

106,428,794

-

-

912,036,578

-

Loans and receivables from Banks

-

Loans and receivables from customers

13

1,199,389,693

707,816,293

995,034,344

Financial investments – Available-for-sale

14

2,167,871

3,868,754

11,325,284

Investment in Real Estate

16

241,449,384

248,866,219

444,563,231

Intangible assets

17

4,146,351

267,652

1,174,121

Other non Financial Assets

18

69,728,141

53,082,196

31,998,024

Property, plant and equipment

15

58,000,901

44,753,776

48,172,160

Deferred tax assets

19

199,347,228

-

975,100

2,027,158,913

2,113,699,877

1,568,009,565

Total assets
Liabilities
Due to other customers

20

992,312,872

1,269,414,270

1,355,057,748

Other Borrowed funds

21

422,913,642

379,827,914

287,472,676

Post Employment Liability

23

12,091,617

15,371,775

16,459,174

Other Non Financial Liabilities

22

75,469,332

56,217,406

1,600,516,088

1,502,787,463

1,720,831,366

3,259,505,686

Total liabilities
Equity
Stated Capital

24

2,851,987,469

2,851,987,469

150,000,000

Statutory reserve fund

25

35,954,872

29,390,181

29,390,181

Investment fund reserve

26

1,710,183

-

-

Available-for-sale-reserve

28

(1,044,599)

(1,253,716)

(22,505,313)

Retained earnings

27

(2,364,236,475)

(2,487,255,423)

(1,848,380,989)

Total shareholders’ equity

524,371,450

392,868,512

(1,691,496,120)

Total equity and liabilities

2,027,158,913

2,113,699,877

1,568,009,565

These Financial Statements are in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

…………………………………							...………………………………		
Asanka Udugama								Ransith Karunaratne 				
Manager - Finance								Chief Executive Officer		
			
The Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements.Signed for and on behalf of the
Board;								

…………………………………………							…………………………………		
Alexis Indrajit Lovell							Director		
Chairman						
			
The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 35 through 75 form an integral part of the financial statements.			
					
7 August 2013				
Colombo			

32

Annual Report 2012/13

UB Finance Company Limited

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended 31 March 2013

2013

2012

Rs.

Rs.

Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Interest Received

187,584,653

108,499,234

5,498,991

1,580,588

(118,866,414)

(249,970,398)

(1,911,206)

(587,320)

1,532,105

1,749,255

Payments on Other Operating Activities

(135,641,069)

(579,028,284)

Operating Profit before changes in Operating
Assets & Liabilities

(61,802,940)

(717,756,924)

(471,349,070)

179,354,479

10,331,362

7,894,679

(277,101,398)

(79,303,217)

(18,708,010)

445,319,071

(818,630,057)

(164,491,912)

Retiring Gratuity paid

(1,057,180)

(1,251,727)

Income Tax (Paid) / Refunds

(2,373,684)

(12,036,359)

(822,060,921)

(177,779,998)

10,976

-

(17,497,140)

(932,020)

(4,489,647)

-

3,200,000

903,520

(18,775,810)

(28,500)

19,360,544

(19,170,974)

-

1,185,665,505

19,360,544

1,166,494,531

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash
Equivalents

(821,476,187)

988,686,032

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year

1,023,453,333

34,767,300

201,977,145

1,023,453,333

429,730

459,204

(15,242,910)

916,565,335

85,559,180

-

131,231,145

106,428,794

201,977,145

1,023,453,333

Fees and Commission Receipts
Interest Paid
Fees and Commission Paid
Receipts from Other Operating Activities

(Increase) / Decrease in Operating Assets
Funds Advanced to Customers
Others
Increase / (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities
Due to banks & other customers
Others
Net Cash from Operating Activities before
Income Tax

Net Cash from Operating Activities
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Dividends Received
Purchase of Property & Equipment
Purchase of Intangible Assets
Proceeds from Sale of Property & Equipment
Net Cash from Investing Activities
Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Increase/Decrease in Borrowings
Issues of Share
Net Cash from Financing Activities

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year
Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash in Hand
Balances with banks
Treasury Bill Investments
Cash collateral on securities borrowed & reverse repurchased agreements

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 35 through 75 form an integral part of the financial statements.			
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UB Finance Company Limited

-

2,851,987,469

Other Comprehensive Income

Transfers during the year

Profit/(Loss) for the year

Transfer to Statutory Reserve

Balance as at 31 March 2013

AFS Transferred Income Statement

2,851,987,469

-

Other Comprehensive Income

Balance as at 31 March 2012

-

Profit/(Loss) for the year

2,701,987,469

-

Transfer of Other Reserve

Conversion Deposits into Shares

-

IFRS adjustments

150,000,000

-

Balance as at 31 April 2011

150,000,000
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35,954,872

6,564,691

-

-

-

29,390,181

-

-

-

29,390,181

-

-

29,390,181

Rs.

Rs.

Other Comprehensive Income

Statutory
Reserve Fund

Stated Capital

Balance as at 31 March 2011

Year ended 31 March 2013

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(108,286,027)

108,286,027

Rs.

Other Reserve
Fund

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,710,183

-

-

1,710,183

Rs.

Investment
Fund Reserve

(1,044,599)

-

-

-

209,117

(1,253,716)

21,251,597

-

-

(22,505,313)

(22,505,313)

Rs.

Availablefor-sale Reserve

-

(2,364,236,475)

(6,564,691)

131,293,822

209,117

(1,710,183)

524,371,450

-

131,293,822

-

392,868,512

21,251,597
(2,487,255,423)

-

(638,874,434)

2,701,987,469

(638,874,434)

(1,691,496,120)

-

(117,201,416)

-

(1,574,294,704)

Rs.

Total

(1,848,380,989)

108,286,027

(117,201,416)

(1,839,465,600)

Rs.

Retained
Earnings

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION
1.1

General

UB Finance Company Limited is a Limited Liability Company,
incorporated and domiciled in Sri Lanka. The Company was
originally incorporated as The Finance & Guarantee Company Limited on 12 July, 1961 under the Companies Ordinance
No.38 of 1938 and was re-registered as required under the
provision of the Companies Act No.7 of 2007 on 26 December,
2007. The Company being a Finance Company is also registered with the Central Bank of Sri Lanka under the Finance
Companies’ Act No.78 of 1988 and Finance Leasing Act No.56
of 2000 of Sri Lanka. Union Bank of Colombo PLC together
with its US based strategic investment partner ShoreCap II
acquired The Finance & Guarantee Co. Ltd. on 1 November,
2011. The Company was restructured, rebranded & launched
as UB Finance Co. Ltd. in June 2012. The Company’s Registered Office / Head Office is currently located at No.10, Daisy
Villa Avenue Colombo 04.

1.2

Principle Activities & Nature of Operations

As a Finance Company registered with the Monetary Board
of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka, the principle business activities of the Company include investment activities such
as accepting fixed deposits and savings accounts, finance
activities such as providing lease, hire purchase and loan
facilities and working capital activities such as factoring.
The Company also deals in real estate and other investment
and credit activities. Being the first finance company to be
backed by a commercial bank in the private sector, UB Finance Company Limited is uniquely positioned to offer its
customers “The versatility of a finance company backed by
the strength of a bank”.

1.3

Date of Authorization for Issue

The Financial Statements of UB Finance Company Ltd for
the year ended 31 March 2013 were authorized for issue in
accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 07
August, 2013.

1.4

Director’s Responsibility Statement

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and
presentation of the Financial Statements of the UB Finance
Comapany Ltd as per the provisions of the Companies Act No.
07 of 2007 and the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (LKAS/
SLFRS).
Financial Statements include the following;
•

Income Statement providing the information on the financial performance of the Company for the year under
review.

•

Statement of Financial position providing the information on the financial position of the Company as at the
reporting date.

•

•

•

Notes to the Financial Statements comprising significant
Accounting Policies

2.0

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

2.1.1

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the company has been prepared
in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards effective
as at 1 January 2012 as issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Sri Lanka.
For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March
2012, UB Finance prepared its financial statements in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards effective as
at 31 March 2012. These financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2013 are the first time adoption of Sri Lanka
Accounting Standards comprising SLFRS/LKAS effective as at
31 March 2012. Accordingly, UB Finance has prepared the
financial statements, which comply SLFRS/LKAS applicable
period ending on or after 1 April 2012 together with comparative period data as at and for the period ended 31 March
2012 as described in the accounting policies. In preparing
these financial statements the Company’s opening statement of financial position was prepared as of 1 April 2012.
Refer to Note 3 for information on how UB Finance Company
adopted SLFRS/LKAS.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a historical cost basis, except for investment properties,
land and buildings, derivative financial instruments and
available-for-sale financial assets that have been measured
at fair value. The carrying values of recognised assets and
liabilities that are designated as hedged items in fair value
hedges that would otherwise be carried at amortised cost,
are adjusted to record changes in the fair values attributable to the risks that are being hedged in effective hedge
relationships.

2.1.2

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements presented in Sri Lankan rupees
have been prepared on a historical cost basis except otherwise stated.

2.1.3

Statement of Compliance

The Preparation and presentation of these financial statements are in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 and the presentation of the financial
statements is also in compliance with the requirements of
the Finance Act No. 30 of 1988.

2.2

Significant accounting judgments, estimates
and assumptions

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements,
apart from those involving estimations, which has the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the Financial Statements: Further, management is also required to
Statement of Changes in Equity showing all changes in
consider key assumptions concerning the future and other
shareholders’ funds during the year under review of the
key sources of information in estimating uncertainty at the
Company.
balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing
material adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
Cash Flows Statement providing the information to the
liabilities within the next financial year as discussed below.
users, on the ability of the company to generate cash
The respective carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are
and cash equivalents and the need for utilization of
given in related notes to the Financial Statements.
those cash flows.
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2.2.1

Going Concern

The Company’s Management has made an assessment of its
ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that it
has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable
future. Furthermore, management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore,
the financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.
The Board of Directors have resolved to hold an Extraordinary General Meeting to provide information to the share
holders on the recoverability of the serious loss of capital,
that occurred prior to the acquisition. It is noted that the
situation has greatly improved since the acquisition of the
Company, by Union Bank of Colombo PLC together with its
US based strategic investment partner ShoreCap and as per
the forecasted financials it is expected to be resolved completely in the foreseeable future.

2.2.2

Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position cannot
be derived from active markets, they are determined by using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use
of mathematical models. The inputs to these models are derived from observable market data where possible, but if this
is not available, judgment is applied to establish fair values.

2.2.3

Impairment losses on loans and advances

The Company reviews its individually significant loans and
advances at each statement-of-financial-position date to
assess whether an impairment loss should be recorded in
the income statement. In particular, Management’s judgement is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the impairment
loss. These estimates are based on assumptions on a number
of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future
changes to the assumptions.
Loans and advances that have been assessed individually
and found not to be impaired and all individually insignificant loans and advances are then assessed collectively, In
comparing assets with similar risk characteristics, to determine whether provision should be made due to incurred loss
events for which there is objective evidence but the effects
of which are not yet evident. The collective assessment
takes account of data from the loan portfolio (such as levels
of arrears, credit utilisation, loan-to-collateral ratios, etc.),
and judgements on the effect of concentrations of risks and
economic data (including levels of unemployment, real estate prices indices, country risk and the performance of different individual Companies). The impairment loss on loans
and advances is disclosed in more detail in Note 06 and Note
32.

2.2.4

Impairment of available for sale investments

The Company reviews its debt securities classified as available for sale investments at each reporting date to assess
whether they are impaired. This requires similar judgement
as applied to the individual assessment of loans and advances.

evaluates, among other factors, historical share price movements and duration and extent to which the fair value of
an investment is less than its cost. The impairment loss on
available for sale investments is disclosed in more detail in
Note 14.

2.2.5

Taxation

The Company is subject to income taxes and other taxes
including VAT on financial services. Significant judgements
were required to determine the total provision for current,
deferred and other taxes pending the issue of tax guidelines
on the treatment of the adoption of SLFRS in the financial
statements and the taxable profit for the purpose of imposition of taxes. Uncertainties exist, with respect to the interpretation of the applicability of tax laws, at the time of the
preparation of these financial statements.
The Company recognized assets and liabilities for current
deferred and other taxes based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters are different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income,
deferred and tax amounts in the period in which the determination is made.

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognised in respect of tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available, against which the losses can be utilised.
Judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits, together with future
tax-planning strategies (See Note 19).

2.2.6

Defined benefit plan

The cost of the defined benefit pension plan is determined
using an actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, expected
rates of return on assets, future salary increases, mortality
rates and future pension increases. Due to the long–term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant
uncertainty. See Note 23 for the assumptions used.

2.2.7 Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
and intangibles
The Company reviews the assets’ residual values, useful
lives and methods of depreciation at each reporting date.
Judgment by the management is exercised in the estimation
of these values, rates, methods.

2.3

Summary of significant accounting policies

2.3.1 Financial instruments – initial recognition and
subsequent measurement
(i)

Date of recognition

All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognised on
the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This
includes ’regular way trades’: purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame generally established by regulation or convention in
the market place.

The Company also records impairment charges on available
for sale equity investments when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below their cost.
The determination of what is ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Company
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(ii)

Initial measurement of financial instruments

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their purpose and characteristics and the
management’s intention on acquiring them. All financial
instruments are measured initially at their fair value plus
transaction costs, except in the case of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at fair value through profit or
loss.
(iii)
loss

Derivatives recorded at fair value through profit or

Derivatives are recorded at fair value and carried as assets
when their fair value is positive and as liabilities when their
fair value is negative. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are included in ‘Net trading income’.
Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are
treated as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if
their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contract, and the host contract is
not itself held for trading or designated at fair value through
profit or loss. The embedded derivatives separated from the
host are carried at fair value in the trading portfolio with
changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.
(iv)
Financial assets or financial liabilities held for
trading
Financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading are
recorded in the statement of financial position at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognised in ‘Net trading income’.
Interest and dividend income or expense is recorded in ‘Net
trading income’ according to the terms of the contract, or
when the right to the payment has been established. Included in this classification are debt securities, equities and
short positions and customer loans that have been acquired
principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the
near term.
(v)
Financial assets and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets and financial liabilities classified in this category are those that have been designated by management
upon initial recognition. Management may only designate an
instrument at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition when the following criteria are met, and designation is determined on an Instrument-by-instrument basis:
•

The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains
or losses on them on a different basis.

•

The assets and liabilities are part of a Company’s
financial assets, financial liabilities or both, which are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy.

tively, using the effective interest rate (EIR), while dividend
income is recorded in ‘Other operating income’ when the
right to the payment has been established.
Included in this classification are loans and advances to customers which are economically hedged by credit derivatives
and do not qualify for hedge accounting, as well as notes
issued which are managed on a fair value basis.
(vi)

‘ Day 1’ profit or loss

When the transaction price differs from the fair value of
other observable current market transactions in the same
instrument, or based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable markets, the Company immediately recognises the difference between the
transaction price and fair value (a ‘Day 1’ profit or loss) in
‘Net trading income’. In cases where fair value is determined
using data which is not observable, the difference between
the transaction price and model value is only recognised in
the income statement when the inputs become observable,
or when the instrument is derecognised.
(vii)

Financial investments available for sale

Available for sale investments include equity and debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for sale
are those which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are intended to be held for an indefinite
period of time and may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the market conditions.
The Company has not designated any loans or receivables as
available for sale.
After initial measurement, available for sale financial investments are subsequently measured at fair value.
Unrealised gains and losses are recognised directly in equity
(Other comprehensive income) in the ‘Available for sale reserve’. When the investment is disposed of, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in equity is recognised in
the income statement in ‘Other operating income’. Where the
Company holds more than one investment in the same security, they are deemed to be disposed of on a first–in first–
out basis. Interest earned whilst holding available for sale
financial investments is reported as interest income using
the EIR. Dividends earned whilst holding available for sale financial investments are recognised in the income statement
as ‘Other operating income’ when the right of the payment
has been established. The losses arising from impairment of
such investments are recognised in the income statement
in ‘Impairment losses on financial investments’ and removed
from the ‘Available for sale reserve’.
(viii)

Held to maturity financial investments

Held to maturity financial investments are non–derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturities, which the Company has the intention and
ability to hold to maturity. After initial measurement, held to
maturity financial investments are subsequently measured
•
The financial instrument contains one or more embedat amortised cost using the EIR, less impairment. Amortised
ded derivatives, which significantly modify the cash
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
flows that would otherwise be required by the contract.
premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral part of
the EIR. The amortisation is included in ‘Interest and similar
Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
income’ in the income statement. The losses arising from improfit or loss are recorded in the statement of financial posipairment of such investments are recognised in the income
tion at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in ‘Net
statement line ‘Credit loss expense’. If the Company were to
gain or loss on financial assets and liabilities designated at
sell or reclassify more than an insignificant amount of held
fair value through profit or loss’. Interest earned or incurred
to maturity investments before maturity (other than in ceris accrued in ‘Interest income’ or ‘Interest expense’, respectain specific circumstances), the entire category would be
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retained and would have to be reclassified as available for
sale. Furthermore, the Company would be prohibited from
classifying any financial asset as held to maturity during the
following two years.
(ix)
ers

Due from banks and loans and advances to custom-

‘Due from Banks and ‘Loans and advances to customers’ include non–derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market,
other than:
• Those that the Company intends to sell immediately or in
the near term and those that the Company, upon initial recognition, designates as at fair value through profit or loss
• Those that the Company, upon initial recognition, designates as available for sale
• Those for which the Company may not recover substantially all of its initial investment, other than because of credit
deterioration
After initial measurement, amounts ‘Due from Banks and
‘Loans and advances to customers’ are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR, less allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees and
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The amortisation is
included in ‘Interest and similar income’ in the income statement. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in
the income statement in ‘Credit loss expense’. The Company may enter into certain lending commitments where the
loan, on drawdown, is expected to be classified as held for
trading because the intent is to sell the loans in the short
term. These commitments to lend are recorded as derivatives
and measured at fair value through profit or loss. Where the
loan, on drawdown, is expected to be retained by the Company, and not sold in the short term, the commitment is recorded only when it is an errorneous contract that is likely
to give rise to a loss (for example, due to a counterparty
credit event).
(x)

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company was permitted to reclassify, in certain circumstances, non–derivative financial assets out of the ‘held for
trading’ category and into the ‘available for sale’, ‘loans and
receivables’, or ’held to maturity’ categories. From this date,
it was also permitted to reclassify, in certain circumstances,
financial instruments out of the ‘available for sale’ category
and into the ’loans and receivables’ category. Reclassifications are recorded at fair value at the date of reclassification, which becomes the new amortised cost.
For a financial asset reclassified out of the ’available for
sale’ category, any previous gain or loss on that asset that
has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss
over the remaining life of the investment using the EIR. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the expected cash flows is also amortised over the remaining life of the
asset using the EIR. If the asset is subsequently determined
to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is recycled to the income statement.
The Company may reclassify a non–derivative trading asset
out of the ‘held for trading’ category and into the ‘loans and
receivables’ category if it meets the definition of loans and
receivables and the Company has the intention and ability
to hold the financial asset for the foreseeable future or until
38

maturity. If a financial asset is reclassified, and if the Company subsequently increases its estimates of future cash receipts as a result of increased recoverability of those cash
receipts, the effect of that increase is recognised as an adjustment to the EIR from the date of the change in estimate.
Reclassification is at the election of management, and is determined on an instrument by instrument basis. The Company does not reclassify any financial instrument into the
fair value through profit or loss category after initial recognition.

2.3.2 Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial
asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:
•

The right to recive cash flows from the Assets have
expired

•

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a ‘pass–through’ arrangement; and either:

•

The Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asse

•

The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass–through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the
extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset.
In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Company has retained. Continuing involvement that
takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Company could be required to repay.
(ii)

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. Where
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference between the carrying value of the original
financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in
profit or loss.

2.3.3 Repurchase and reverse repurchase
agreements
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase at a specified future date are not derecognised from the statement of
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financial position as the Company retains substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership. The corresponding cash
received is recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position as an asset with a corresponding obligation
to return it, including accrued interest as a liability within
‘Cash collateral on securities lent and repurchase agreements’, reflecting the transaction’s economic substance as
a loan to the Company. The difference between the sale and
repurchase prices is treated as interest expense and is accrued over the life of agreement using the EIR. When the
counterparty has the right to sell or re pledge the securities,
the Company reclassifies those securities in its statement
of financial position to ‘Financial assets held for trading
pledged as collateral’ or to ‘Financial investments available
for sale pledged as collateral’, as appropriate. Conversely,
securities purchased under agreements to resell at a specified future date are not recognised in the statement of financial position. The consideration paid, including accrued
interest, is recorded in the statement of financial position,
within ‘Cash collateral on securities borrowed and reverse
repurchase agreements’, reflecting the transaction’s economic substance as a loan by the Company. The difference
between the purchase and resale prices is recorded in ‘Net
interest income’ and is accrued over the life of the agreement using the EIR. If securities purchased under agreement
to resell are subsequently sold to third parties, the obligation to return the securities is recorded as a short sale
within ‘Financial liabilities held for trading’ and measured at
fair value with any gains or losses included in ‘Net trading
income’.

2.3.4 Securities lending and borrowing
Securities lending and borrowing transactions are usually
collateralised by securities or cash. The transfer of the securities to counterparties is only reflected on the statement
of financial position if the risks and rewards of ownership
are also transferred. Cash advanced or received as collateral
is recorded as an asset or liability. Securities borrowed are
not recognised on the statement of financial position, unless
they are then sold to third parties, in which case the obligation to return the securities is recorded as a trading liability
and measured at fair value with any gains or losses included
in ‘Net trading income’.

2.3.5 Determination of fair value
The fair value for financial instruments traded in active markets at the reporting date is based on their quoted market
price or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions
and ask price for short positions), without any deduction
for transaction costs. For all other financial instruments
not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined
by using appropriate valuation techniques. Valuation techniques include the discounted cash flow method, comparison
with similar instruments for which market observable prices
exist, options pricing models, credit models and other relevant valuation models.
Certain financial instruments are recorded at fair value using
valuation techniques in which current market transactions
or observable market data are not available. Their fair value
is determined using a valuation model that has been tested
against prices or inputs to actual market transactions and
using the Company’s best estimate of the most appropriate model assumptions. Models are adjusted to reflect the
spread for bid and ask prices to reflect costs to close out
positions, credit and debit valuation adjustments, liquidity
spread and limitations in the models. Also, profit or loss calculated when such financial instruments are first recorded
(‘Day 1’ profit or loss) is deferred and recognised only when
the inputs become observable or on de recognition of the

instrument (see Note 2.3 above). An analysis of fair values of
financial instruments and further details as to how they are
measured are provided in Note 31.

2.3.6 Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date, whether there
is any objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired. A
financial asset is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that have occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset (an ‘incurred loss event’) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include: indications that the borrower or
a Company of borrowers is experiencing significant financial
difficulty; the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; and where observable data indicates that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults
i)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost (such as
amounts due from Banks, loans and advances to customers as well as held to maturity investments), the Company first assesses individually whether objective evidence of
impairment exists for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Company determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, it includes financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the assets’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement. Interest income continues to
be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The
interest income is recorded as part of ‘Interest and similar
income’.
Loans together with the associated allowance are written
off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred
to the Company. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the
estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because
of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write–
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the ’Credit
loss expense’.
The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original EIR. If a loan has a
variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current EIR. If the Company has reclassified trading assets to loans and advances, the discount
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rate for measuring any impairment loss is the new EIR (Refer Note 2.3 above) determined at the reclassification date.
The calculation of the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of a collateralized financial asset reflects the
cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for
obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.
For the purpose of collective evaluation of impairment of
financial assets the company use Company’s internal credit grading system, that considers credit risk characteristics
such as asset type, industry, geographical location, collateral type, past–due status and other relevant factors. Future
cash flows on financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to those in the Company. Historical loss experience is
adjusted on the basis of current observable data to reflect
the effects of current conditions on which the historical loss
experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions
in the historical period that do not exist currently.
Estimates of changes in future cash flows reflect, and are
directionally consistent with, changes in related observable
data from year to year (such as changes in unemployment
rates, property prices, commodity prices, payment status,
or other factors that are indicative of incurred losses in
the Company and their magnitude). The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.
(ii)

Available for sale financial investments

For available for sale financial investments, the Company
assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective
evidence that an investment is impaired.
In the case of debt instruments classified as available for
sale, the Company assesses individually whether there is
objective evidence of impairment based on the same criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost. However,
the amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss
measured as the difference between the amortised cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the income statement.
Future interest income is based on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of
‘Interest and similar income’. If, in a subsequent period, the
fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase
can be objectively related to a credit event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the income statement, the impairment loss is reversed through the income
statement. In the case of equity investments classified as
available for sale, objective evidence would also include a
‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ decline in the fair value of the
investment below its cost.The Company treats ‘significant‘
generally as 20% and ‘prolonged’ generally as greater than
six months. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that investment previously recognised in the income
statement is removed from equity and recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses on equity investments
are not reversed through the income statement; increases
in the fair value after impairment are recognised in other
comprehensive income. See Note 14 for details of impairment
losses on financial investments–available for sale.
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(iii)

Resheduled loans

Where possible, the Company seeks to restructure loans
rather than to take possession of collateral. This may involve
extending the payment arrangements and the agreement of
new loan conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated, any impairment is measured using the original EIR as
calculated before the modification of terms and the loan is
no longer considered past due. Management continually reviews renegotiated loans to ensure that all criteria are met
and that future payments are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to an individual or collective impairment
assessment, calculated using the loan’s original EIR.
(iv) Collateral
The Company seeks to use collateral, where possible, to
mitigate its risks on financial assets. The collateral comes
in various forms such as cash, securities, letters of credit/guarantees, real estate, receivables, inventories, other
non-financial assets and credit enhancements such as netting agreements.

2.3.7 Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the Statement of financial position
if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. This is generally not the case
with master netting agreements, therefore, the related assets and liabilities are presented gross in the Statement of
financial position.

2.3.8 Leasing
The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or
it contains a lease, is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the
fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use
of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a
right to use the asset.
Company as a lessee
Leases that do not transfer to the Company substantially all
the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased
items are operating leases. Operating lease payments are
recognised as an expense in the income statement on a
straight line basis over the lease term. Contingent rental
payable is recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.
Company as a lessor
Leases where the Company does not transfer substantially
all of the risk and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating operating leases are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income.Contingent rents
are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
earned.

2.3.9

Recognition of income and expenses

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is
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recognised.
(i)
Interest and similar income and expense

(iv)

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest bearing financial assets classified as available for sale
and financial instruments designated at fair value through
profit or loss, interest income or expense is recorded using
the EIR. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset
or financial liability. The calculation takes into account all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment options) and includes any fees or incremental
costs that are directly attributable to the instrument and
are an integral part of the EIR, but not future credit losses.
The carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability is adjusted if the Company revises its estimates of
payments or receipts. The adjusted carrying amount is calculated based on the original EIR and the change in carrying amount is recorded as ’Interest and similar income’ for
financial assets and ’Interest and similar expense’ for financial liabilities. However, for a re-classified financial asset for
which the Company subsequently increases its estimates of
future cash receipts as a result of increased recoverability of
those cash receipts, the effect of that increase is recognised
as an adjustment to the EIR from the date of the change in
estimate.
Once the recorded value of a financial asset or a Company of
similar financial assets has been reduced due to an impairment loss, interest income continues to be recognised using
the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
(ii)

Fee and commission income

Customer loyalty programmes

Award credits under customer loyalty programmes are accounted for as a separately identifiable component of
the transaction in which they are granted. The fair value of
the consideration received in respect of the initial sale is
allocated between the award credits and the other components of the sale. Income generated from customer loyalty
programmes is recognised in ‘Other operating income’.

2.3.10 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include notes and coins in hand,
unrestricted balances held with Central Bank of Sri Lanka
and highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of
less than three months, which are subject to insignificant
risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Company in the management of its short-term commitments

2.3.11 Property and equipment
Recognition and measurement
Items of property and equipment are measured at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses for plant and equipment.
Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any
other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to
a working condition for their intended use, the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on
which they are located and capitalised borrowing costs. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the
related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.

The Company earns fee and commission income from a diverse range of services it provides to its customers. Fee income can be divided into the following two categories:

When parts of an item of property or equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items
(major components) of property and equipment.

Fee income earned from services that are provided over a
certain period of time

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and
equipment is determined by comparing the proceeds from
disposal with the carrying amount of the item of property
and equipment, and are recognised net within other income
in profit or loss.

Fees earned for the provision of services over a period of
time are accrued over that period. These fees include commission income and asset management, custody and other management and advisory fees. Loan commitment fees
for loans that are likely to be drawn down and other credit
related fees are deferred (together with any incremental
costs) and recognised as an adjustment to the EIR on the
loan. When it is unlikely that a loan will be drawn down, the
loan commitment fees are recognised over the commitment
period on a straight line basis.
Fee income from providing transaction services
Fees arising from negotiating or participating in the negotiation of a transaction for a third party, such as the arrangement of the acquisition of shares or other securities or the
purchase or sale of businesses, are recognised on completion of the underlying transaction. Fees or components of
fees that are linked to a certain performance are recognised
after fulfilling the corresponding criteria.
(iii)

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to
receive the payment is established.

Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing a part of an item of property or equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is
probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is de-recognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of
property and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.
Depreciation
Depreciation is recognized in income statement on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each
part of an item of property and equipment since this most
closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the
future economic benefits embodied in the asset. Leased assets under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter
of the lease term and their useful lives. Land is not depreciated. The depreciation charges are determined separately
for each significant part of an item of Property, Plant and
Equipment and commence to depreciate when it is available
for use. Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the
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date that the asset is classified as held for sale or the date
that the asset is de-recognized
The estimated useful lives of the assets by equal annual instalments are as follows.
Building

2.5%

Leasehold Improvements

10%

Computer and Equipment

25%

Furniture and Fittings

7.5%

Motor Vehicles

15%

The asset’s residual value, useful life and method of depreciation are reviewed at each statement of financial position
date and adjusted prospectively, with changes in accounting
estimates.

2.3.12 Intangible assets
Software
Software acquired by the Company is stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
Expenditure on internally developed software is recognised
as an asset when the Company is able to demonstrate its
intention and ability to complete the development and use
the software in a manner that will generate future economic
benefits, and can reliably measure the costs to complete the
development. The capitalised costs of internally developed
software include all costs directly attributable to developing the software and capitalised borrowing costs, and are
amortised over its useful life. Internally developed software
is stated at capitalised cost less accumulated amortization
and impairment.

Estimated useful life of intangible assets
Intangible

Amortization Period

Computer Software

Over 10 years from the date
of Available to use

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are
reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate.

2.3.13 Impairment of non–financial assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there
is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset
is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable
amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds
its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and
is written down to its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre–tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are collaborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded
subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.

Amortization is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful life of the software, from
the date that it is available for use since this most closely
reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future
economic benefits embodied in the asset.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made
at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable
amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that
the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceeds the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such
reversal is recognised in the income statement. Impairment
losses relating to goodwill are not reversed in future periods.

Other intangible assets

2.3.14 Employee benefits

Other intangible assets consist of brands, Asset Management
Advisory Intangible, licences and other related infrastructure. Other intangible assets are initially recognised when
they are separable or arise from contractual or other legal
rights, the cost can be measured reliably and, in the case
of intangible assets not acquired in a business combination,
where it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the assets will flow from their use. The value of intangible assets which are acquired in a business combination is
generally determined using income approach methodologies
such as the discounted cash flow method.

Defined contribution plans

Subsequent expenditure on software assets is capitalised
only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Other intangible assets are stated at cost less amortization
and provisions for impairment, if any, plus reversals of impairment, if any. They are amortised over their useful lives in
a manner that reflects the pattern to which they contribute
to future cash flows.

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit
plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions
to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss when they are due in respect of service rendered before the end of the reporting period. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that
a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.
Contributions to a defined contribution plan that are due
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
in which the employees render the service are discounted to
their present value at the reporting date.

Retirement benefits- defined benefit plan- Gratuity
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan
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other than a defined contribution plan. The Company’s net
obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for
their service in the current and prior periods and discounting that benefit to determine its present value, and then
deducting the fair value of any plan assets. The calculation
is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method.

an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.
A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid
under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to
pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

The Company measures the present value of the promised
retirement benefits for gratuity, which is a defined benefit
plan with the advice of an independent professional actuary
using the Projected Unit Credit method (PUC) as required by
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards No.19 - Employee Benefits.

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the income statement net of any reimbursement.

For the purpose of determining the charge for any period
before the next regular actuarial valuation falls due, an
approximate estimate provided by the qualified actuary is
used.
The Principal actuarial assumptions
The principal assumptions used in the Valuation were as
follows
Parameter

2013

2012

Discount Rate

11 %

10 %

Rate of salary increase

09 %

09 %

The demographic assumptions underlying the valuation are
retirement age 55, early withdrawals from service, and retirement on medical grounds, death before and after retirement, etc.
An actuarial valuation is carried out every three years to
ascertain the full liability under the Fund.
Recognition of actuarial gains and losses

Provisions

2.3.15 Taxes
(i)

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
years are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and
tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
(ii)

Past Service Costs are recognised as an expense on a straight
line basis over the average period until the benefits become
vested. If the benefits have already been vested, immediately following the introduction of, or changes to the plan, past
service costs are recognized immediately.
Funding arrangements
The Gratuity liability is not externally funded.
Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the
Company is committed demonstrably, without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either terminate employment before the normal retirement date, or to
provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits for
voluntary redundancies are recognised if the Company has
made an offer of voluntary redundancy, it is probable that
the offer will be accepted, and the number of acceptances can be estimated reliably. If benefits are payable more
than 12 months after the reporting period, then they are
discounted to their present value.
Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:
•

Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in
atransaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

•

In respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Actuarial gains or losses are recognised in the Income Statement in the period in which they arise.
Recognition of past service cost

Current tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except:
•

Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss

•

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.
Current tax and deferred tax relating to items recognised
directly in equity are also recognized in equity and not in
the income statement. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

2.3.16 Treasury shares and contracts on own shares
Own equity instruments of UB Finance which are acquired by
it or by any of its subsidiaries (treasury shares) are deducted from equity and accounted for at weighted average cost.
Consideration paid or received on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognized in
the income statement on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of own equity instruments. When the Company holds
own equity instruments on behalf of its clients, those holdings are not included in the Company’s statement of financial position.
Contracts on own shares that require physical settlement of
a fixed number of own shares for a fixed consideration are
classified as equity and added to or deducted from equity.
Contracts on own shares that require net cash settlement
or provide a choice of settlement are classified as trading
instruments and changes in the fair value are reported in the
income statement in ‘Net trading income’.

2.3.17 Dividends on ordinary shares
Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability
and deducted from equity when they are approved by the
Company’s shareholders. Interim dividends are deducted
from equity when they are declared and no longer at the
discretion of the Company. Dividends for the year that are
approved after the reporting date are disclosed as an event
after the reporting date.

2.3.18 Non-current assets held for sale and disposal
Company
Non-current assets and disposal Company classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell. Non-current assets and disposal Company is classified as held for sale if their carrying
amounts will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and
the asset or disposal Company is available for immediate
sale in its present condition, management has committed to
the sale, and the sale is expected to have been completed within one year from the date of classification. In the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the reporting period, and of the comparable period of the previous
year, income and expenses from discontinued operations are
reported separately from income and expenses from continuing operations, down to the level of profit after taxes, even
when the UB Finance Company retains a non-controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale. The resulting profit or
loss (after taxes) is reported separately in the statement of
comprehensive income. Property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets once classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortized.
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2.3.19 Earnings per share
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share
(EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated
by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the UB Finance Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares, which comprise share
options granted to employees.

2.4

Standards issued but not yet effective

Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the consolidated financial statements are set out
below along with details of SLFRS which will have a future
effect on the accounting policies adopted by the Company.
(i) SLFRS 09 – Financial instruments: Classifications and
measurement
SLFRS 09, as issued reflect the first phase of work on replacement of LKAS 39 and applies to classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities.
(ii)

SLFRS 13 - Fair value measurement

SLFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance under SLFRS for all fair value measurements. SLFRS 13 provides guidance on all fair value measurement under SLFRS.
SLFRS 9 and SLFRS 13 will be effective for financial period
beginning on or after 1 January 2014 and 2015 respectively.
In addition to that the above, following standards have also
been issued and will be effective for financial period beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
SLFRS 10 - Consolidation financial Statements
SLFRS 11 - Joint Arrangement
SLFRS 12 – Disclosure interest in other entities
The Company will adopt these standards when they become
effective. Pending detail review, the financial impact is not
reasonably estimable as at the date of publication of these
financial statements.

3.

First-time adoption of SLFRSs and LKASs

These financial statements, for the year ended 31 March
2013, are the first UB Finance Company has prepared in
accordance with SLFRSs and LKASs. For periods up to and
including the year ended 31 March 2012, UB Finance Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with
Previous Sri Lanka Accounting standards. Accordingly, UB
Finance Company has prepared financial statements which
comply with SLFRSs and LKASs applicable for periods ending
on or after 31 March 2012, together with the comparative
period data as at and for the year ended 31 March 2012,
as described in the accounting policies. In preparing these
financial statements, UB Finance’s opening statement of financial position was prepared as at 1 April 2011, the Company’s date of transition to SLFRS and LKAS. This note explains
the principal adjustments made by UB Finance in restating
its Previous Accounting Standards statement of financial position as at 1 April 2011 audits previously published Previous
Accounting Standards financial statements as at and for the
year ended 31 March 2012.
In preparing this consolidated- financial statements, UB Finance has applied the requirement of SLFRS 01 First time
adoption of Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, including retrospective application of SLFRS effective for the UB Finance on
adoption, unless otherwise indicated. The resulting adjustments are described below.
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A,B

-

-

-

(354,684,526)

2,148,484,383

260,072

-

-

-

-

-

(132,000)

-

(354,812,598)

Rs.

Remeasurement

39,817,647

171,686,000

Commissioner General of Inland Revenue

Amounts due from Ceylinco Group of companies

61,216,404
256,820,297

Amounts Due from Hire Purchase, Lease & Loans

Loans & Advances

45,421,423

Property Plant & Equipment

267,652

4,000,754

257,670,670

245,058,149

C

11,480,399

Investments In real Estates

Intangible Assets

Investment Securities

Stock Out on Hire , Lease & Easy Payment

Trade & Other Receivable

912,036,578

106,428,794

Central Bank Securities

Fixed Deposits

36,579,616

Rs.

SLAS

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Assets

First Time Adoption of SLFRS
Reconciliation of Equity as at 1 April 2012

Year ended 31 March 2013

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

UB Finance Company Limited
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-

-

-

319,900,020

(39,817,647)

(118,863,876)

(256,820,297)

(61,216,404)

(667,647)

3,808,070

-

-

(257,670,670)

1,051,148,492

Rs.

Reclassification
Assets

New Classification

2,113,699,877 Total assets

53,082,196 Non Financial Assets

-

44,753,776 Property, plant and equipment

248,866,219 Investment in Real Estate

267,652 Intangible assets

3,868,754 Financial investments – Available-for-sale

707,816,293 Loans and Receivables To Customers

912,036,578 Loans and receivables From Banks

106,428,794 Cash collateral on securities
borrowed & reverse repurchased
agreements

36,579,616 Cash In hand and Balances with
Banks

Rs.

"SLFRS as at
1 April 2012"

46

Annual Report 2012/13

Retained Earnings

Statutory Reserve Fund

Stated Capital

Equity

Retirement Benefit Obligation

Trade & Other Payables

Lease Creditors

Amounts Due to Ceylinco Group Of companies

Share Suspences Account

Borrowings

Bank Balance Overdraft

Public Deposits

Liabilities

421,331,819

(354,684,526)
(354,684,526)

326,221,219
2,040,198,356

428,186,047

400,080,222

21,251,597

-

-

(22,505,313)

-

6,854,229

7,442,054

(299,057,921)

56,121,002

(462,390)

(1,117,345)

(127,476,713)

348,236,259

23,169,282

Reclassification

(332,179,214)

(2,555,156,431)

29,390,181

2,851,987,469

-

1,713,977,137

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Remeasurement

7,929,721

299,057,921

96,404

462,390

1,117,345

127,476,713

31,591,655

1,246,244,988

SLAS
Liabilities

New Classification

2,113,699,877 Total equity and liabilities

392,868,512 Total shareholders’ equity

(2,487,255,423) Retained earnings

(1,253,716) Available-for-sale-reserve

29,390,181 Statutory reserve fund

2,851,987,469 Stated Capital

Equity

1,720,831,366 Total liabilities

15,371,775 Retirment Benefit Liability

-

56,217,406 Other liabilities

-

-

-

379,827,914 Other Borrowed Funds

1,269,414,270 Due to other customers

"SLFRS as at
1 April 2012"
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-

520,750
(406,896,919)

27,781,288
1,701,949,293

Commissioner General of Inland Revenue

-

-

48,991,200

975,100

Property Plant & Equipment

Differed Tax Assets

311,264,382

-

-

Amounts Due From Related Parties

-

1,174,121

-

-

-

-

(404,006,097)

Intangible Assets

68,871,791

437,755,161

11,325,284

366,983,439

-

-

53,891,968

(3,411,572)

3,411,572

-

-

334,756,686

C

A,B

A

-

Rs.

Rs.
34,767,300

Remeasurement

SLAS

Loans & Advances

Amounts Due From Hire Purchase, Lease & Loans

Investment In Real Estate

Investment Securities

Stock Out On Hire, Lease & Easy Payment

Trade & Other Receivables

Fixed Deposits

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Assets

First Time Adoption of SLFRS
Reconciliation of Equity as at 1 April 2011

Year ended 31 March 2013
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-

-

-

-

272,957,190

3,695,986

(48,991,200)

-

(311,264,382)

48,172,160

-

(334,756,686)

(68,871,791)

6,808,070

-

1,032,057,002

(53,891,968)

Rs.

Reclassification

Assets

New Classification

1,568,009,565 Total assets

31,998,024 Other Non Financial Assets

-

975,100 Deferred tax assets

48,172,160 Property, plant and equipment

1,174,121 Intangible assets

444,563,231 Investment in Real Estate

11,325,284 Financial investments – Available-for-sale

995,034,344 Loans and receivables to other
customers

-

- Loans and receivables From
Banks

-

- Cash collateral on securities
borrowed & reverse repurchased agreements

34,767,300 Cash In hand and Balances
with Banks

Rs.

"SLFRS as at
1 April 2011"
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(384,391,606)
(406,896,919)
(406,896,919)

(1,551,789,374)
1,701,949,293

Total shareholders’ equity

(22,505,313)

(1,839,465,582)

-

-

108,286,027

29,390,181

-

-

3,253,738,667

150,000,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,517,439,308

Remeasurement

Retained Earnings

General Reserve

Statutory Reserves

Stated Capital

Equity

Share Suspense Account

16,459,174

146,647,687

Borrowings

Retirement Benefit Obligation

199,355,605

45,801

462,390

1,325,554,705

47,773,997

Trade & Other Payables

Lease Creditors

Amounts Due to Related Parties

Public Deposits

Bank Balance Overdrawn

Liabilities

SLAS

381,243,219

375,476,200

483,762,227

(108,286,027)

-

-

5,767,019

(1,517,439,308)

-

(146,647,687)

(199,355,605)

1,600,470,287

(462,390)

(1,038,082,029)

1,307,283,751

Reclassification
Liabilities

New Classification

1,568,009,565 Total equity and liabilities

(1,691,496,120) Total shareholders’ equity

(1,848,380,989) Retained earnings

(22,505,313) Available-for-sale-reserve

- Other reserve Funds

29,390,181 Statutory reserve fund

150,000,000 Stated Capital

Equity

3,259,505,686 Total liabilities

-

16,459,174 Post Employment Liability

-

-

1,600,516,088 Other liabilities

-

287,472,676 Other Borrowed Funds

1,355,057,748 Due to other customers

"SLFRS as at
1 April 2011"
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(410,300,246)

(130,012,992)

89,772,808

(712,911,077)

Net Profit before Taxation

15,401,319

495,661,596

(51,774,660)

(16,599,772)

(499,848,044)

40,784,800

(175,016,816)

-

(66,450,269)

(233,887,183)

-

940,327
(1,396,247)

808,928
(130,012,992)

-

(587,320)
(7,949,820)

8,943,089

(10,744,217)

(28,576,127)

-

-

-

17,831,910

-

(36,635,026)

54,466,936

-

-

54,466,936

260,678

54,727,614

Rs.

Remeasurement

(7,362,501)

5,613,246

(139,765,009)
8,943,089

22,786

248,224,243

5,636,032

Rs.

Rs.
108,459,234

Reclassification

SLAS

Other Cost

Finance Cost

Selling & Distribution Expenses

Administrative Expenses

Real Estate Income (Net)

E

F

Interest Expenses

Other Income

D

Interest Income

First Time Adoption of SLFRS		
Reconciliation of Income as at 31 March 2012		

Year ended 31 March 2013
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UB Finance Company Limited

49

New Classification

(633,882,486) Operating profit/(loss) before
value added tax (VAT)

(80,350,787) Other expenses

(1,198,453) Amortisation and impairment of
intangible assets

(4,186,448) Depreciation of Property, Plant &
Equipment

(25,665,469) Staff costs

(522,481,329) Net operating income

(175,016,816) Fair Value Losses on the Real
Estates

(270,522,210) Impairment losses on Loans and
Receivables

(76,942,303) Total operating income

1,749,255 Other operating income (net)

993,269 Net fee and commission income

(587,320) Fee and commission expenses

1,580,588 Fee and commission income

(79,684,827) Net interest income

248,507,707 Interest expenses

168,822,880 Interest income

Rs.

"SLFRS as at
1 April 2012"
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Profit After Taxation

Taxation
(715,690,849)

(2,779,772)

(712,911,077)

SLAS

87,560,632

-

87,560,632

(2,212,176)

Reclassification
-

(10,744,217)

(10,744,217)

Remeasurement

New Classification

(638,874,434) Profit/(loss) for the year

(2,779,772) Tax expense

(636,094,662) Profit/(loss) before tax

- Share of profits of associates and
joint ventures

- Operating profit/(loss) after value
added tax (VAT)

(2,212,176) Value added tax (VAT) on financial
services

"SLFRS as at
1 April 2012"

First Time Adoption of SLFRS
Reconciliation of Income as at 31 March 2012

E
Impairment gain / ( loss) on financial investments
3 FIRST- TIME ADOPTION OF LKAS AND SLFRSs (Contd.)
							
							
The effect of the reversal made in previous SLAS financial
A
Adjustment on loan impairment 			
statements was removed since such provision was not made
						
in SLFRS based Financial statements.				
The previously recognised loan loss provision amounting to
					
Rs. 176.7 Mn and Interest in suspense of Rs. 210 Mn were
F
Personnel cost 					
reversed and impairment provision of Rs. 527 Mn was recog			
nised as at April 1, 2011, (the date of transition) after making
A charge on staff loan fair value adjustment, amortization of
necessary adjustments to retained earnings.			
pre-paid staff cost of Rs. 0.26 Mn was adjusted to Personnel
				
Expenses.							
As at 31 March 2012 the impairment provision was Rs.528
Mn was recognized against the loan loss provision of 210 Mn
which was previously recognised based on previous SLAS.
								
The movement between the impairment balances of two
		
years was recognised in the Income Statement as an impairment charge.
B

Staff Loans measured at Fair Value			

Under previous SLAS, staff loans were recorded at cost less
repayments, net of loan loss provision, if any. Under SLFRS ,
the Company measured staff loans granted below the market interest rate at their fair value, calculated based on the
market interest rate of similar products. The fair value of
such loans as at April 1, 2011 was Rs.4.6 Mn and their previous SLAS carrying amount was Rs. 5.2 Mn The difference
between the fair value and previous SLAS carrying amount
has been deducted from Lease rentals receivable and Stock
out on hire and recognized as pre-paid staff cost in Other
Non Financial Assets.
		
As at 31 March 2012 the fair value of staff loan was Rs. 4.4
Mn and their previous SLAS carrying amount was Rs. 4.8 Mn
The difference between the fair value and SLAS carrying
amount has been deducted from Lease rentals receivable &
Stock out on hire and recognized as pre-paid staff cost in
Other Non Financial Assets.					
						
C
Financial investments- Available- for- Sale
Under previous SLAS, the Company recognised its investment
portfolios which was not held for active trading activities
at cost. Under SLFRS, the Company has designated such investments as available-for-sale investments and measured
at fair value. Such investments includes equity investment
and investment in treasury bonds against Investment Fund
Account.
At the date of transition to SLFRS, the fair value of these
assets was Rs 31.99 Mn and their previous SLAS carrying
amount was Rs. 27.78 Mn. The difference of Rs. 4.21 Mn between the fair value of the instruments and previous SLAS
carrying amount has been recognized as a separate component of equity, in the available-for-sale reserve.			
						
As at March 31, 2012 the fair value of the investment was
Rs. 3.8 Mn and previous SLAS carrying amount was Rs. 4 Mn.
The difference between the fair value and previous SLAS
carrying amount of Rs. 0.13 Mn has been recognized in the
available-for-sale reserve and together with the movement
in respect of such items. 					
							
D
Interest income 					
			
Net increase in income amounting to Rs. 168 Mn was made
after netting off the staff loan fair value adjustment, EIR adjustment on Loans, Lease, Hire Purchase and Other Advances
and impact on interest unwinding.
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Year ended 31 March 2013
		
4

INCOME
2013

2012

Rs.
Interest Income

Rs.
233,590,684

168,822,880

Fee and Commission Income

5,498,991

1,580,588

Other Operating Income (net)

1,987,750

1,749,255

241,077,424

172,152,724

Total Income

4.1

Interest income
2013

2012

Rs.

Rs.

Sri Lanka Government securities

14,186,587

2,755,764

Balances with banks

61,013,369

39,592,388

158,390,728

126,474,729

233,590,684

168,822,880

Loans and receivables to other customers
Total interest income

4.2

Interest expense
2013

2012

Rs.
Due to banks

Rs.
30,519,218

133,062,090

Due to other customers

111,889,593

115,445,617

Total interest expenses

142,408,811

248,507,707

Net interest income

91,181,872

(79,684,827)

4.3

Net Fee And Commission Income
2013

2012

Rs.
Fee and Commission Income
Fee and Commission Expenses
Net fee and commission income

5

Rs.
5,498,991

1,580,588

(1,911,206)

(587,320)

3,587,785

993,269

OTHER OPERATING INCOME (NET)
2013

2012

Rs.
Dividend Income
Gain On Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment

Rs.
10,976

-

444,668

50,330

Others

1,532,105

1,698,925

Other Operating Income (net)

1,987,750

1,749,255
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6

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON LOANS AND RECEIVABLES
2013

2012

Rs.

Rs.

Loans and receivable from the customer
Lease / Hire Purchase

7

(29,759,599)

(265,124,477)

4,465,886

(5,397,733)

(25,293,714)

(270,522,210)

STAFF COSTS
2013

2012

Rs.

Rs.

Salary and bonus
Contributions to defined contribution plans
Contributions to defined benefit plans
Social Security cost
Others
Total

34,732,913

19,900,678

4,735,776

3,372,386

(1,742,978)

281,204

2,893,920

1,341,735

178,096

769,467

40,797,727

25,665,469

Provision for the retirement gratuities have been made based on the actuarial valuation carried out as at 31 December 2012.
Please refer note 23 for detailed disclosure and assumptions on the retirement benefit liability.			

8

OTHER EXPENSES
2013

2012

Rs.

Rs.

Directors’ emoluments

4,642,857

3,475,000

Auditors’ remuneration

1,332,500

295,937

Professional and legal expenses

4,303,468

274,500

Advertising & Marketing expenses

14,724,765

112,911

Office administration and establishment expenses

45,349,270

45,854,609

Others
Total
				

9

19,488,090

30,337,830

89,840,950

80,350,787

TAXATION

The components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2013 & 2012 are;

2013

2012

Rs.
Current Income Tax
Deferred tax expense
Total

Annual Report 2012/13

Rs.
-

1,804,772

(199,347,228)

975,000

(199,347,228)

2,779,772

53

a.

Reconciliation of tax expenses

In Rupees

2013

2012

Rs.

Rs.

Profit Before Tax
Add: Disallowable Expenses

(67,740,344)

(633,882,486)

2,377,442

13,676,471

(1,258,989)

(995,932)

-

-

(66,621,891)

(621,201,947)

(18,654,130)

(173,936,545)

-

1,804,772

(199,347,228)

975,000

(199,347,228)

2,779,772

Less: Tax Deductible Expenses
Statutory Income
: Tax Losses claimed
Taxable Income
Income Tax on Current Year Profit @ 28%( Company)
In Rupees
Disallowed Penalty Charges
Deferred Tax charge/(credit) ( Note No 9.b)
Tax expense for the period

b.

The deferred tax (credit)/charge in the income statement comprise of the following.

In Rupees

2013

2012

Rs.

Rs.

In Rupees
Deferred tax assets

10.

(199,347,228)

975,000

(199,347,228)

975,000

BASIC EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE

10.1

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, as per LKAS 33- Earnings Per Share.
						
10.2
The following reflects the income and share details used in the computation of the Basic Earning per Share.

2013

2012

Amounts used as the numerators:
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders for basic
earnings per share

131,293,822

(638,874,434)

1,695,162,885

1,695,162,885

0.08

(0.36)

Number of ordinary shares used as denominators for
basic earnings per share
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

Basic Earnings / (Loss) per ordinary share (Rs.)
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CASH IN HAND AND BALANCES WITH BANKS
2013

2012

2011

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Cash in hand

429,730

459,204

332,500

Cash with Banks

35,709,289

36,120,412

34,434,800

Central bank of Sri Lanka

85,559,180

-

-

121,698,199

36,579,616

34,767,300

Total

12

CASH COLLATERAL ON SECURITIES BORROWED AND REVERSE REPURCHASED AGREEMENTS		
2013
Rs.

Due from Banks

13

2012

2011

Rs.

Rs.

131,231,145

106,428,794

-

131,231,145

106,428,794

-

2013

2012

2011

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES TO OTHER CUSTOMERS

Gross loans and receivables (Note 13.1 & 13.2)

2,406,588,719

1,889,721,604

1,906,417,446

(Less): Individual impairment charges (Note 13.3)

(877,219,915)

(842,914,358)

(556,902,037)

Collective impairment charges (Note 13.3)

(329,979,111)

(338,990,953)

(354,481,065)

1,199,389,693

707,816,293

995,034,344

2013

2012

2011

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Net loans and receivables

13.1

Gross Loans and Receivables to other customers - by product

By product
Pawning

544,281

488,211

431,988

Staff loans

3,556,495

4,462,020

4,664,550

Term loans

478,031,729

431,154,184

622,578,329

Lease and Hire Purchase

496,772,857

196,798,224

176,125,222

Housing Loans

231,946,036

228,948,019

255,847,332

Factoring

147,097,209

-

-

65,110,454

53,883,537

53,732,256

Repossessed Loans
Other Loans and Receivables
Gross Loans and Advances

13.2

983,529,658

973,987,409

793,037,768

2,406,588,719

1,889,721,604

1,906,417,446

Gross Loans and Receivables to other customers - by industry
2013
Rs.

2012

2011

Rs.

Rs.

Transport

561,883,311

250,681,761

229,857,478

Construction

709,977,765

660,102,203

878,425,661

Trading & Other Services

147,097,209

-

-

Other Services

987,086,153

978,449,429

797,702,318

Other Customers Including Pawning
Gross total

544,281

488,211

431,988

2,406,588,719

1,889,721,604

1,906,417,446
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13.3

Movements in Individual and Collective Impairment Charges during the Year
2013

2012

Rs.

Rs.

Individual impairment charges
Opening balance
(Charge)/Write back to income statement
Closing balance

(842,914,358)

(556,902,037)

(34,305,557)

(286,012,321)

(877,219,914)

(842,914,358)

(338,990,953)

(354,481,065)

Collective impairment charges
Opening balance
(Charge)/Write back to income statement
Closing balance

9,011,842

15,490,112

(329,979,111)

(338,990,953)

14
FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS - AVAILABLE FOR-SALE (EXCLUDING SRI LANKA GOVERNMENT SECURITIES)
														
2013

2012

2011

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Equity securities
Quoted (Note 14.1)

2,606,570

2,606,570

2,606,570

28,577,027

28,577,027

28,709,027

Investment in Debentures (Note 14.3)

430,000

2,340,000

2,340,000

Investment in Unit Trusts (Note 14.4)

175,000

175,000

175,000

(200,000)

(200,000)

(200,000)

(29,420,726)

(29,629,843)

(22,305,313)

2,167,871

3,868,754

11,325,284

Unquoted (Note 14.2)

(Less): Impairment charges on Debt Securities
(Less): Impairment charges on Equity Securities
Net Available-for-sale Investments

14.1
Equity Securities
										
2013
QUOTED INVESTMENTS
Blue Diamond Jewellary
Worldwide PLC

14.2

No. of
Shares

Cost
Rs.

1,040,657

2012
Market
Value Rs.

No. of
Shares

2,606,570

1,561,971

2,606,570

1,561,971

Cost
Rs.

1,040,657

Market
Value Rs.

2,606,570

1,352,854

2,606,570

1,352,854

Unquoted Investments									
2013
No. of
Shares

Cost
Rs.

2012
Director
Valuations

No. of
Shares

Cost
Rs.

Director
Valuations

50

5,000

-

50

5,000

-

Golden Key Credit Card Co
Ltd

10,000

100,000

-

10,000

100,000

-

Ceylinco Venture Capital
Ltd

73,000

730,000

-

73,000

730,000

-

Interna. Consult. & Corp.
Ser. (Pvt) Ltd

100,000

1,000,000

-

100,000

1,000,000

-

Ceyenergy Electronic Co.
(Pvt) Ltd

30,000

300,000

-

30,000

300,000

-

F & G Real Estate Co. Ltd

18,000

180,000

-

18,000

180,000

-

Interna. College of Business
Tech. Ltd

10,000

100,000

-

10,000

100,000

-

San Michel Ltd
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2013
No. of
Shares

2012

Cost
Rs.

Director
Valuations

No. of
Shares

Cost
Rs.

Director
Valuations

Ceylinco Tax & Financial
Consultants

50,000

500,000

-

50,000

500,000

-

Ceylinco Islamic Corporation
Ltd

10,000

100,000

-

10,000

100,000

-

Ceylinco Netassist (Pvt) Ltd

12,500

125,000

-

12,500

125,000

-

Ceylinco Niranjan Invention
(Pvt) Ltd

9,500

95,000

-

9,500

95,000

-

Ceylinco CISCO Ranaviru Ser.
(Pvt) Ltd

50,000

500,000

-

50,000

500,000

-

IC & CS Software Solutions
(Pvt) Ltd

12,500

125,000

-

12,500

125,000

-

Ceylinco Foliage Exports
(Pvt) Ltd

25,000

250,000

-

25,000

250,000

-

Ceylinco Aruna Accessories
Ltd

25,000

250,000

-

25,000

250,000

-

Ceylinco Coloured Stones
(Pvt) Ltd

60,000

600,000

-

60,000

600,000

-

Ceylinco Investment & Reality Ltd

630,000

6,300,000

-

630,000

6,300,000

-

Ceylinco International Trading Co.

25,000

250,000

-

25,000

250,000

-

Ceylinco Grameen Credit Co.
Ltd

25,000

250,000

-

25,000

250,000

-

Seraka Investment Ltd

70,000

700,000

-

70,000

700,000

-

Ceylinco Capital Ltd

12,500

125,000

-

12,500

125,000

-

TFC Homes (Pvt) Ltd

200,000

2,000,000

-

200,000

2,000,000

-

48,540

485,400

-

48,540

485,400

-

Cey. Seylan Housing & Com.
Properties
Ceylinco Packaging Ltd

166,667

1,666,667

-

166,667

1,666,667

-

F & G Realtors Share Capital
Co.

34,000

340,000

-

34,000

340,000

-

Fingara International Cricket
Academy

879,906

8,799,060

-

879,906

8,799,060

-

Fingara International Cricket
Academy

25,000

2,500,000

-

25,000

2,500,000

-

Credit Information Bureau

9

900

900

9

900

900

Finance House Consortium
(Pvt) Ltd

20,000

200,000

200,000

20,000

200,000

200,000

28,577,027

200,900

28,577,027

200,900

14.3
Investment in Debentures
										
2013
No of
Debentures

2012

Cost
Rs.

Market
Value Rs.

No of
Debentures

Cost
Rs.

Market
Value Rs.

Ceylinco Sec. & Fin. Services
Co Ltd

2,000

200,000

200,000

2,000

200,000

200,000

Ceylinco Institute of Mgt Ltd

2,000

200,000

-

2,000

200,000

-

300

30,000

30,000

300

30,000

30,000

Seylan Bank Ltd

-

-

-

16,600

1,660,000

1,660,000

Seylan Debenture Issue A/c
2007/2012

-

-

-

2,500

250,000

250,000

430,000

230,000

Seylan Merchant Leasing
Ltd
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2,340,000

2,140,000
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14.4
Investment in Unit trust
										
2013
INVESTMENTS IN UNIT
TRUST

No of
Units

Cost
Rs.

2012
Market
Value Rs.

No of
Debentures

Cost
RS.

Market
Value Rs.

Pyrimid Unit Trust

7,500

75,000

75,000

7,500

75,000

75,000

Cey Bank Unit Trust

9,569

100,000

100,000

9,569

100,000

100,000

175,000

175,000

175,000

175,000
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Net book value at 31 March

Closing balance

Disposals

Charge for the year

Opening balance

(Less): Accumulated depreciation

32,952,516

3,237,698

-

575,998

2,661,700

-

-

-

-

-

-

Closing balance

36,190,215

Disposals

-

185,251

418,010

(342,008)

136,048

623,970

603,261

(513,542)

-

1,116,802

94,762

508,499

336,537

-

90,489

418,010

603,261

-

-

603,261

Rs.

Leasehold Motor Vehicles

-

-

-

36,190,215

32,292,136

3,898,079

-

660,380

-

Additions

Opening balance

Cost

2012

Net book value at 31 March

Closing balance

Disposals

Charge for the year

Opening balance

3,237,698

336,537

36,190,215

(Less): Accumulated depreciation

Closing balance

-

-

Disposals/Transfers

336,537

Rs.

Leasehold
Assets

-

36,190,215

Rs.

Land and
Buildings

Additions/Transfers

Opening balance

Cost

Property, Plant and Equipment

15.1

2013

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15

1,018,840

2,955,546

-

285,869

2,669,677

3,974,386

-

744,000

3,230,386

2,673,028

3,541,187

-

585,640

2,955,546

6,214,215

-

2,239,828

3,974,386

Rs.

Computer &
Equipments

6,704,404

26,832,946

-

1,999,066

24,833,880

33,537,350

-

188,020

33,349,330

3,746,868

5,758,986

(23,272,720)

2,198,760

26,832,946

9,505,854

(26,363,024)

2,331,528

33,537,350

Rs.

Furniture &
Fittings

3,892,765

4,727,775

115,985

1,189,467

3,422,323

8,620,540

123,564

-

8,496,976

5,659,299

5,442,521

-

714,745

4,727,775

11,101,819

(1,942,221)

4,423,500

8,620,540

Rs.

Motor Vehicle

44,753,776

38,171,976

(226,023)

4,186,448

34,211,550

82,925,752

(389,978)

932,020

82,383,710

44,802,630

19,149,271

(23,272,720)

4,250,015

38,171,976

63,951,900

(28,305,245)

9,331,394

82,925,752

Rs.

Total

15.2

Capital Work in Progress
2013

2012

Rs.

2011

Rs.

Opening Balance

Rs.

-

-

-

Incurred During the Year

13,198,271

-

-

Closing Balance

13,198,271

-

-

15.3

Net Book Values
2013

2012

2011

At Cost

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Land and Buildings

32,292,136

32,952,516

33,528,515

336,537

-

-

Motor Vehicles

Leasehold Assets

5,659,299

3,892,765

5,074,653

Computer & Equipments

2,673,028

1,018,840

560,709

Furniture & Fittings

3,746,868

6,704,404

8,515,450

94,762

185,251

492,833

Capital Work in Progress (Note 15.2)

13,198,271

-

-

Total Carrying Amount of Property, Plant and Equipment

58,000,901

44,753,776

48,172,160

On Finance Leases
Leasehold Motor Vehicles

15.4

During the financial year, the Company acquired Property, Plant and Equipment to the aggregate value of
Rs.9,331,394 (2012 - Rs.932,020). 											

												
15.5
There were no significant temporarily idling assets as at 31 March 2013.
			

16

INVESTMENT IN REAL ESTATE
2013

2012

2011

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Land
Cost

195,551,848

223,789,814

216,353,056

(103,850,592)

(112,278,135)

(109,547,215)

91,701,256

111,511,679

106,805,841

27,604,774

32,505,021

42,606,879

-

-

-

27,604,774

32,505,021

42,606,879

781,157,760

781,157,760

781,157,760

Provision

(659,014,405)

(676,308,241)

(486,007,248)

Net Value

122,143,354

104,849,518

295,150,512

Total Net Real Estate

241,449,384

248,886,219

444,563,231

Provision
Net Value
Housing Projects
Cost
Provision
Net Value
Joint Venture Projects
Cost
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

				

2013

2012

2011

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Opening balance

7,289,240

6,997,256

6,997,256

Additions/Tranfers

4,489,647

291,984

-

11,778,887

7,289,240

6,997,256

7,021,588

5,823,136

2,223,709

Sub total (closing balance)
(Less): Amortization of Intangible Assets
Opening balance
Amortization for the year/Transfers

610,948

1,198,453

3,599,427

Closing balance

7,632,536

7,021,588

5,823,136

Net book value at 31 March

4,146,351

267,652

1,174,121

18

OTHER NON FINANCIAL ASSETS
2013

2012

2011

Cost

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Advances

26,005,643

44,464,014

3,276,773

Deposits and prepayments

42,845,298

4,131,897

27,781,288

77,286

260,072

520,750

799,913

4,226,213

419,213

69,728,141

53,082,196

31,998,024

Prepaid staff cost
Others
Total

19

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred Tax Assets, Liabilities and Income Tax relates to the followings
		
“Statement of
Comprehensive Income”

“Statement of Financial Position”
Deferred Tax Liability

Accelerated Depreciation for Tax
Purposes

Deferred Tax Assets
Defined Benefit Plans
Brought Forward Tax Losses

2013

2012

2011

2013

2012

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

4,717,796

4,304,097

3,633,569

413,699

670,528

4,717,796

4,304,097

3,633,569

199,760,927

(1,279,472)

-

-

-

-

(4,717,796)

(4,304,097)

(4,608,569)

(413,699)

(199,347,228)

-

-

(199,347,228)

(204,065,024)

(4,304,097)

(4,608,569)

(199,760,927)

304,472

(199,347,228)

975,000

Deferred Income Tax (Charge)/
Reversal
Net Deferred Tax Liability/ (Asset)

304,472

(199,347,228)

-

(975,000)

Based on company future budget company has identified Rs 199 mn deffered tax , 					
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20

DUE TO OTHER CUSTOMERS

At amortised cost
Total

20 .1

2011

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

992,312,872

1,269,414,270

1,355,057,748

1,269,414,270

1,355,057,748

Due to other Customers - by product

Savings deposits
Total

2013

2012

2011

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

4,726,069

3,947,980

4,522,692

987,586,803

1,265,466,290

1,350,535,056

992,312,872

1,269,414,270

1,355,057,748

Fixed deposits

OTHER BORROWED FUNDS

Borrowings from Financial Institutions & Banks
Total

22

2012

992,312,872

By product

21

2013

2013

2012

2011

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

422,913,642

379,827,914

287,472,676

422,913,642

379,827,914

287,472,676

OTHER NON FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Accrued Expenses
Sundry creditors

2013

2012

2011

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

5,002,392

6,440,123

4,948,384

52,646,611

32,733,787

16,806,599

Other payables

17,820,330

17,043,496

1,578,761,104

Total

75,469,332

56,217,406

1,600,516,088

23

POST EMPLOYMENT LIABILITY

The movement of the Retirment Benefit Obligation of the Company is given below;

23.1

Defined benefit obligation (included in other liabilities)

The movement of the Retirment Benefit Obligation of the Company is given below;

		

2013

2012

2011

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Opening defined benefit obligation

15,371,775

16,459,174

20,166,863

Expense on defined benefit plan

(2,222,978)

164,328

159,558

Payments made during the year

(1,057,180)

(1,251,727)

(3,867,247)

Closing defined benefit obligation

12,091,617

15,371,775

16,459,174
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23.2
The principal assumptions used in determining defined benefit obligation are shown below;		
			
2013
Discount rate

11%

10%

9%

9%

55 Years

55 Years

Future Salary increment rate
Retirement age

2012

23.3

Messers Piyal S. Goonathileke and Associates, a firm of professional actuaries has carried out an indpendent actuarial valuation of the defined benefit plan and accordingly compatible assumptions have been used in determining the cost of
retirement benefits.

24

STATED CAPITAL

The Company maintains capital in oder to cover risks inherent in the business and meet the capital adequacy requirements
of Central Bank of Sri lanka. The adequacy of the Company’s Capital is monitored based on the measures , rules and ratios
adopted by Central Bank of Sri Lanka.
				
Capital Management
The primary objective of Company’s capital management policy is to ensure that the Company complies with externally imposed capital requirements and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximize shareholders’ value.
				

Balance as at 1 April

2013

2012

2011

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

2,851,987,469

150,000,000

150,000,000

-

2,701,987,469

-

2,851,987,469

2,851,987,469

150,000,000

Conversion during the year
Balance as at 31 March

25

STATUTORY RESERVE

25.1
Five percent of the profits after tax is transferred to the Reserve Fund as required by Section 20 (1) of the Finance
Company Act No.30 of 1988. This reserve fund will be used only for the purposes specified in Section 20 (2) of the Banking Act
No. 30 of 1988. 					
				

Balance as at 1 April
Transfer during the year
Balance as at 31 March

26

2013

2012

2011

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

29,390,181

29,390,181

29,390,181

6,564,691

-

-

35,954,872

29,390,181

29,390,181

INVESTMENT FUND ACCOUNT

26.1
Investment Fund Account is established and operated based on the Guidelines on the operations of the Investment
Fund Account issued by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka on 29 April 2011 with the concurrence of the Commissioner General of
Inland Revenue.
26.2
As per the guideline;
					
(I). 8% of the profits calculated for the payment of Value Added Tax (VAT) on Financial Services on dates as specified in the
VAT act for payment of VAT.					
(II). 5% of the profit before tax calculated for payment of income tax purposes on dates specified in Section 113 of the Inland
Revenue Act for the self assessment payment of tax should be transferred to the Investment Fund Account to build up a permanent fund within the Bank.					
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2013

2012

2011

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Balance as at 1 April

-

-

-

Transfer during the year

1,710,183

-

-

Balance as at 31 March

1,710,183

-

-

27

RETAINED EARNINGS					
				

Balance as at 1 April

2011

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

(1,848,380,989)

(927,708,113)

131,293,822

(638,874,434)

(920,672,876)

(6,564,691)

-

-

(2,364,236,475)

(2,487,255,423)

(1,848,380,989)

(1,710,183)

Profit for the year
Transfer to Statutory Reserve

28

2012

(2,487,255,423)

Transfer to Investment Fund

Balance as at 31 March

2013

AVAILABLE FOR SALE RESERVE			

				

2013

2012

2011

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Balance as at 1 April

1,253,716

22,505,313

22,505,313

Transfer during the year

(209,117)

-

-

(21,251,597)

-

1,253,716

22,505,313

Transfer to Income Statement
Balance as at 31 March
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Company 2013

29.1

-

Cash collateral on securities borrowed & reverse repurchased agreements

Loans and receivables from customers

Financial investments – Available-for-sale

Total assets

Company 2012

-

-

Loans and receivables from customers

Financial investments – Available-for-sale

1,649,242,185

379,827,914

Total liabilities

1,269,414,270

Amortised
cost Rs.

1,762,861,281

-

707,816,293

912,036,578

Other Borrowed funds

-

106,428,794

36,579,616

Rs.

L&R

1,415,226,514

Due to other customers

Liabilities

Total assets

-

-

Loans and receivables from Banks

-

-

Cash collateral on securities borrowed & reverse repurchased agreements

Rs.
-

Rs

Cash in hand and balances with Banks

Assets

In Rupees

29.2

Total liabilities

422,913,642

1,452,319,037

-

1,199,389,693

131,231,145

121,698,199

Other Borrowed funds

-

-

-

-

-

-

Rs.

L&R

992,312,872

HTM

Rs.

HTM

Due to other customers

Liabilities

-

HFT

Rs

HFT

Cash in hand and balances with Banks

Assets

In Rupees

MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

29
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-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,868,754

3,868,754

Rs.

AFS

2,167,871

2,167,871

Rs.

AFS

1,649,242,185

379,827,914

1,269,414,270

1,766,730,035

3,868,754

707,816,293

912,036,578

106,428,794

36,579,616

Rs.

Total

1,415,226,514

422,913,642

992,312,872

1,454,486,908

2,167,871

1,199,389,693

131,231,145

121,698,199

Rs.

Total

30

COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

In the normal course of business, the Company entered in to various irrevocable commitments and incurs certain contingent
liabilities. This consists mainly of undrawn commitments to lend.
						
		

30.1

Capital commitement

2013

2012

Rs.

Rs.

2011
Rs.

Undrawn loan commitments

71,838,653

-

-

Total

71,838,653

-

-

30.2

Lease Arrangements

Operating Lease Commitments - Company as Lessee
								
The Company has entered in to operating leases for Company premises. These leases have an average life of 10 years with no
renewal option. There are no restrictions placed upon the lessee by entering in to these leases.
Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating leases as at 31 March are, as follows;
Within one year

8,400,000

After one year to five years

37,324,500

More than five years

50,617,464
96,341,964

											

30.3

Litigations against the Company

Litigation is a common occurrence in the Company industry due to the nature of the business undertaken. The Company has
an established legal protocol for dealing with such legal claims. Once professional advice has been obtained on the certainty of the outcome and the amount of damages reasonable estimated, the Company makes adjustments to account for any
adverse effect which the claims may have on its financial standing. Set out below are unresolved legal claims against the
Company as at the year end for which adjustments to the Financial Statements have not been made due to the uncertainty of
it’s outcome. Litigations against the UB Finance Company Limited.
a

Case No - DHP/2066/09 , DSP/0222 /10, MR / 54859, DLM/107/2011, DLM/00043/09, MDC/1102, M/4107/2011-		
DC, DSP/0050/10, DSP/0266/1, DMR/2291/12									
Ten cases filed in the District court of Colombo by the customers claiming the deposit money, Land and repossed
vehicles.											
												
b
Case No - HC /Civil/337, HC/Civil/293/10, HC/Civil/177 /10								
Three cases filed in the Commercial High Court of Colombo claiming loan amounts.					
													
c
Case No - 56402/06											
Filed Action against the Company in the Magistrate Courts regarding the non payment of Deposit			
														
d
Case No - 2121 / P											
Case filed by a third party against the title of the property in the District Court of Panadura. 			
								
e
Case No - C/A 315/11 											
An employee filed an action at the labour department asking the deducted salary.

31

Fair value of financial instruments
Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by Valuation
techniques.
						
Level 1 : quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.					
		
Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either
directly or indirectly
							
Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable
market data
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Company

Level 1

Level 2

Total

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

2013
Financial assets
Quoted Equities

1,561,971
-

605,900

605,900

1,561,971

605,900

2,167,871

Unquoted equities
Total Financial Assets

1, 561,971

Level 1

Level 2

Total

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

2012
Financial assets
Equity Securities

1,352,854

605,900

1,958,754

Total Financial Assets

1,352,854

605,900

1,958,754

31
Fair value of financial instruments (cont’d)
A. Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy (cont’d)
Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair values of the company’s Financial Instruments that
are not carried at fair value in the Financial Statements. This table does not include the fair values of non–financial assets
and non–financial liabilities.
2013
Financial Assets

Carrying
amount
Rs.

2012
Fair
value
Rs.

Carrying
amount
Rs.

Fair
value
Rs.

Cash in hand and balances with Banks

121,698,199

121,698,199

36,579,616

36,579,616

Cash collateral on securities borrowed &
reverse repurchased agreements

131,231,145

131,231,145

106,428,794

106,428,794

-

-

912,036,578

912,036,578

1,199,389,693

1,199,389,693

707,816,293

669,975,240

2,167,871

2,167,871

1,454,486,908

1,454,486,908

1,762,861,281

1,725,020,228

Due to other customers

992,312,872

992,312,872

1,269,414,270

1,269,414,270

Other Borrowed funds

422,913,642

422,913,642

379,827,914

379,827,914

1,415,226,514

1,415,226,514

1,649,242,185

1,649,242,185

Loans and receivables from Banks
Loans and receivables from customers
Financial investments – Available-for-sale
Financial liabilities

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities not
carried at fair value
The following describes the methodologies and assumptions
used to determine fair values for those financial instruments
which are not already recorded at fair value in the financial
statements:
Assets for which fair value approximates carrying value
For financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short
term maturity (less than a year) it is assumed that the carrying amounts approximate their fair value. This assumption

is also applied to demand deposits, and savings accounts
without a specific maturity. Loans and advances to customers with a variable rate are also considered to be carried at
fair value							
			
Fixed rate financial instruments 					
			
The fair value of fixed rate financial assets and liabilities
carried at amortised cost are estimated by comparing market interest rates when they were first recognised with current market rates for similar financial instruments. The estimated fair value of fixed interest bearing deposits is based
on discounted cash flows using prevailing interest rates of
the company.
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32

RISK MANAGEMENT

32.1
Introduction					
“Risk is inherent in the company’s activities, but is managed
through a process of ongoing identification, measurement
and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This
process of risk management is critical to the companies continuing profitability and each individual within the company
is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her
responsibilities. The company is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk, the latter being sub-divided into
trading and non–trading risks. It is also subject to country
risk and various operating risks.
						
The business risks such as changes in the environment,
technology and industry are primarily addressed through
the company’s strategic planning process. Industry specific
changes are also reviewed and presented on a need basis by
the Management and are tabled at the Integrated Risk Management Committee (IRMC) and the Credit Committee (CC).

32.2

Risk management structure			

The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall risk
management approach and for approving the risk management strategies and principles. The Board has appointed a
Board Sub Committee called “Integrated Risk Management
Committee (IRMC)” which has the responsibility to monitor
the overall risk process within the company.			
		
The IRMC has the overall responsibility for the development
of the risk strategy and implementing principles, frameworks, policies and limits. IRMC is also responsible for managing risks and monitoring risk levels and reports on monthly/quarterly basis to the Board.				
Exceptions are reported on daily/ monthly/ quarterly basis,
where necessary, to the IRMC or its sub committees, and the
relevant actions are taken to address exceptions and any
areas of weakness.					
Company Treasury and the Management Committee are responsible for managing the company’s assets and liabilities
and the overall financial structure.

32.3

Risk measurement and reporting systems

32.4

Risk mitigation

As part of its overall risk management, the company uses
various instruments to manage exposures resulting from
credit risks, changes in interest rates, equity risks, and exposures arising from transactions.
The company actively uses collateral to reduce its credit
risks.
						
32.5
Excessive risk concentration 		
In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the company’s policies and procedures include specific guidelines,
including concentration limits to focus on maintaining a diversified portfolio. Identified concentrations of credit risks
are controlled and managed accordingly.			

32.6

Credit risk

The company manages and controls credit risk by setting
limits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for individual counterparties and for geographical and industry
concentrations, and by monitoring exposures in relation to
such limits.
							
The company has established a credit quality review process to provide early identification of possible changes in
the creditworthiness of borrowers, including regular collateral revisions. Company uses a risk rating process to rate
the borrowers according to its risk profile. The credit quality
review process aims to allow the company to assess the potential loss as a result of the risks to which it is exposed and
take corrective action.
A structured and standardized credit appraisal and approval process is in place. Credit Authority lies with the Board
of Directors, Board Credit Committee, Credit Committee and
members of the management as per the assigned limits on
delegated credit authority. All credit facilities are required
to be reviewed by the Branch Managers and Product Managers annually. Company’s systems for credit evaluation
and decision making are independent from collateralization
albeit collateral helps to mitigate credit risk.

Credit Operation Department reviews credit facilities before
Monitoring and controlling risks is primarily performed based
and after sanctioning of facilities. A separate Loan Review
on limits established by the company. These limits reflect
Policy approved by the Board of Directors is in place.
the business strategy and market environment of the company as well as the level of risk that the company is willing
In the post sanctioning review of credit facilities, the Credit
to accept, with additional emphasis on selected industries.
Committee reviews among other things, the disbursements,
In addition, the company’s policy is to measure and monitor
perfection of collaterals and repayments are in accordance
the overall risk bearing capacity in relation to the aggregate
with the terms of approval. 				
risk exposure across all risk types and activities.		
				
32.7
Impairment assessment
Information compiled from all the businesses is examined and
processed in order to analyse, control and identify risks on a
For accounting purposes, the company uses an incurred
timely basis. This information is presented and explained to
loss model for the recognition of losses on impaired finanthe Board of Directors and Integrated Risk Committee. These
cial assets. This means that losses can only be recognized
reports include aggregate credit exposures, credit concenwhen objective evidence of a specific loss event has been
tration, operational risk, market risk and liquidity ratios.
observed. Triggering events include the following:
Management assess the appropriateness of the allowance
for credit losses on a monthly basis. 				
• Significant financial difficulty of the customer
					
• A breach of contract such as a default of payment.		
Risk related policies are documented and made available to
• Where the company grants the customer a concession due
all staff at all levels for a comprehensive understanding of
to the customer experiencing financial difficulty, It becomes
the Company’s risk appetite and the overall risk manageprobable that the customer will enter bankruptcy or other
ment of the Company. Workshops are held to share knowlfinancial reorganization
edge of potential risk events and keep the staff abreast with
• Observable data that suggests that there is a decrease in
the latest changes. Briefings are also given to other relevant
the estimated future cash flows from the loans
members of the company on the utilization of market limits,
proprietary investments and liquidity, plus any other risk
developments						
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Specific Impairment

loans and advances that have been assessed individually
and found not to be impaired.				
The company determines the provisions appropriate for each
					
individually significant loan or advance on an individual baThe company generally bases its analysis on historical expesis by Credit Administration, Credit Department, Finance
rience. However, when there are significant market developDepartment, including any overdue payments of interests,
ments, the company would include macroeconomic factors
or infringement of the original terms of the contract. Items
within its assessments. 						
considered when determining provisioning amounts include
			
the sustainability of the counterparty’s business plan, its
Allowances are evaluated separately at each reporting date
ability to improve performance if it is in a financial difficulty,
with each portfolio.						
projected receipts and the expected payout should bank			
ruptcy ensue, the availability of other financial support, the
The collective assessment is made for groups of assets with
realizable value of collateral and the timing of the expected
similar risk characteristics, in order to determine whether
cash flows. Impairment allowances are evaluated at each reprovision should be made due to incurred loss events for
porting date, unless unforeseen circumstances require more
which there is objective evidence, but the effects of which
careful attention.					
are not yet evident in the individual loans assessments. The
collective assessment takes account of data from the loan
Collective Impairment 						
portfolio (such as historical losses on the portfolio, levels of
			
arrears, credit utilization, loan to collateral ratios and exAllowances are assessed collectively for losses on loans and
pected receipts and recoveries once impaired) or economic
advances and for held to maturity debt investments that are
data.							
not individually significant and for individually significant
As at 31st March 2013

Notes

"Neither Past
Due
Nor Impaired"

"Past Due But
Not Impaired"

"Individually
Impaired"

Total

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Assets
Cash in hand and balances with Banks

121,698,199

-

-

121,698,199

Cash collateral on securities borrowed &
reverse repurchased agreements

131,231,145

-

-

131,231,145

-

-

-

-

1,005,347,284

148,501,481

45,540,928

1,199,389,693

2,167,871

-

-

2,167,871

241,449,384

-

-

241,449,384

4,146,351

-

-

4,146,351

58,000,901

-

-

58,000,901

199,347,228

-

-

199,347,228

69,728,141

-

-

69,728,141

1,833,116,504

148,501,481

45,540,928

2,027,158,913

Loans and receivables from Banks
Loans and receivables from customers
Financial investments – Available-for-sale
Investment in Real Estate
Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets
Other non Financial Assets
Total assets

Aging Analysis of past due(i.e. facilities in arrears of 1 day and above) but not impaired loans by class of financial assets
Past Due But Not Impaired											
3 to 6 Months
Loans and receivables from customers

6 to 9 Months

9 to 12
Months

More than12
Months

Total

24,397,031

9,617,807

3,603,358

110,883,285

148,501,481

24,397,031

9,617,807

3,603,358

110,883,285

148,501,481
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32.8

Credit–related commitment risks

Such commitment risks are mitigated by regular review of
unfunded limits and exposures similar to review of funded
limits and exposures. 						
						

32.9

Collateral and other credit enhancements:

The amount and type of collateral required depends on an
assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty.		
Guidelines are in place covering the acceptability and valuation of each type of collateral.
The main types of collateral obtained are as follows:
• For securities lending and reverse repurchase transactions, cash or securities					
		
• For commercial lending, charges over real estate properties, inventory and trade receivables etc				
			
• For retail lending, mortgages over residential properties
etc
						
• Management monitors the market value of collateral, and
will request additional collateral in accordance with the underlying agreement.
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• It is the company’s policy to dispose of repossessed properties in an orderly fashion. The proceeds are used to reduce
or repay the outstanding claim. In general, the company
does not occupy repossessed properties for business use.
					
• The company also makes use of netting agreements with
borrowers with whom a significant volume of transactions
are undertaken. 		
			
Although on the balance sheet netting arrangements may
significantly reduce credit risk, it should be noted that:
• Credit risk is eliminated only to the extent that amounts
due to the same borrower will be settled after the assets
are realized
					
• The documentation are legally enforceable		

32.10 Credit quality by class of financial assets		
							
The company manages the credit quality of financial assets
by categorising its credit exposure by class of financial asset, line of business and geographic region. It is the company’s policy to maintain accurate and consistent risk profile
across the credit portfolio. The table below shows the credit
quality for all financial assets exposed to credit risk, based
on the company’s internal credit rating system.
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Analysis of risk concentration

-

422,913,642

383,192,679

-

-

-

-

496,017,371

-

-

(65,865,940)

-

561,883,311

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

734,883,843

-

-

(136,391,303)

(811,212,365)

1,612,759,371

Rs.

Retail

-

-

131,231,145

-

-

-

-

-

-

131,231,145

Rs.

Government

4,146,351

1,695,936,293

241,449,384

2,167,871

(329,979,111)

(877,219,915)

2,406,588,719

-

131,231,145

121,698,199

Rs.

Total

-

422,913,642

422,913,642

-

422,913,642

-

															

Other Borrowed funds

Deferred tax assets

-

-

422,913,642

422,913,642

2,027,158,913

199,347,228

69,728,141

-

279,666,003

241,449,384

-

(127,721,867)

-

-

-

-

121,698,199

Rs.

Transport

Other non Financial Assets

2,167,871

-

2,167,871

(66,007,550)

231,946,036

-

-

-

Rs.

Financial Services

58,000,901

2,027,158,913

241,449,384

2,167,871

-

-

-

-

-

Rs.

Construction

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Non Financial Instruments

Total assets

Investment in Real Estate

Investments

(329,979,111)

(877,219,915)

Specific Impairment

Collective Impairment

2,406,588,719

Loans and receivables from customers

-

131,231,145

Cash collateral on securities
borrowed & reverse repurchased
agreements

Loans and receivables from
Banks

121,698,199

Rs.

Rs.

Cash in hand and balances with
Banks

Manufacturing

Company

The following table shows the risk concentration by industry for the components of the statement of financial position.

32.11
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32.12

Liquidity risk and funding management

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the company will
encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because of the
possibility that the company might be unable to meet its
payment obligations when they fall due under both normal
and stress circumstances. To limit this risk, management has
arranged diversified funding sources in addition to its core
deposit base, and adopted a policy of managing assets with
liquidity consistently through a Management Committee.
The company has developed internal control processes and
contingency plans for managing liquidity risk. This incorporates an assessment of expected cash flows and the availability of high grade collateral which could be used to secure
additional funding if required.
The company maintains a portfolio of highly marketable and
diverse assets that are assumed to be easily liquidated in
the event of an unforeseen interruption of cash flow. The
company also has lines of credit that it can access to meet
liquidity needs. In addition, the company maintains Treasury
bill investments with the Central Bank of Sri Lanka equal
to 13.2% of customer deposits. Net liquid assets consist of
cash, short–term company deposits and liquid debt securities available for immediate sale, less deposit for banks
and other issued securities and borrowings due to mature
within the next month. The ratios during the year were, as
follows:

Liquid Asset Ratios
2013
Year End

14%

Maximum

47%

Minimum

14%

Average
30%
						

Advances to Deposit Ratios – 2013

			
The company stresses the importance of fixed deposit and
savings accounts as sources of funds to finance lending to
customers.
						

Advances to Deposit Ratio

2013
Year End

3.3

Maximum

3.3

Minimum

1.2

Average
2.0
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-

Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment

Deferred tax assets

Other non Financial Assets

Total equity and liabilities

637,263,008

560,972,621

															

292,460,217

Total shareholders’ equity

Equity

560,972,621

-

-

-

-

431,260,710

-

-

58,000,901

4,146,351

241,449,384

536,463,067

524,371,450

12,091,617

637,263,008

-

371,961,442

189,011,179

843,985,694

-

199,347,228

-

-

-

-

-

-

127,664,074

Over 5 Years

Total liabilities

75,469,332

-

561,793,676

286,775,501

69,728,141

-

-

-

-

2,167,871

-

-

644,638,466

1 to 5 years

12,091,617
292,460,217

-

-

214,879,489

3 to 12 Months

Post Employment Liability

-

50,952,199

Other Borrowed funds

Other Non Financial Liabilities

241,508,017

Due to other customers

Liabilities

465,137,008

-

Total assets

-

212,207,663

Loans and receivables from customers

Investment in Real Estate

131,231,145

Cash collateral on securities borrowed & reverse repurchased agreements

Financial investments – Available-for-sale

121,698,199

Less Than 3 Months

Cash in hand and balances with Banks

Assets

2013

2,027,158,913

524,371,450

1,502,787,463

12,091,617

75,469,332

422,913,642

992,312,872

2,027,158,913

69,728,141

199,347,228

58,000,901

4,146,351

241,449,384

2,167,871

1,199,389,693

131,231,145

121,698,199

Total Balances

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the company’s financial assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2013. Contractual maturities of undiscounted cash flows of financial assets and liabilities are shown in the table below;										

Analysis of financial assets and liabilities by remaining contractual maturities						
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33.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD					

No circumstances have arisen since the reporting date which would require adjustments to, or disclosure in the Financial Statements, other than the following; 					
						
The Company has entered into an agreement with Sasia Net, appointing them as the exclusive provider for the Company’s new
state-of-the-art ERP system.					
											

34.

ASSETS PLEDGED

The following assets have been pledged as security for liabilities.

As at 31 March 2013
Description of Property
Thalahena Project

Nature of
encumbrance

Facility Taken
Rs.

Mortgagors Name

Deed No.

Short term loan

100,000,000 Lanka Orix Leasing Co.Ltd

M/B/No.798

Short term loan

60,000,000 Lanka Orix Leasing Co.Ltd

M/B/No.629

F & G Housing Project
Embuldeniya

As at 31 March 2012
Description of Property

Secured for Fixed Deposit
Fixed Assets
Land at Battaramulla

Nature of
encumbrance

Facility Taken
Rs.

Mortgagors Name

Deed No./
Mortgage Bond
No.

Secured for FD

6,510,261

Mrs. K.A.P. Subashini

M/B/No.2509

Joint Venture Housing Project
Negombo Project
Continental Residencies, Adnives Rd,
Periyamulla, Negombo

Secured for FD
Secured for FD

21,600,000
10,000,000

Mr. L.Berty Jayatissa Perera
Mr. M.Upatissa Dissanayake
Mrs. B.D.Violet Dissanayake

M/B/No.2420
M/B/No.2419

Thalahena Project

Short term loan

100,000,000

Lanka Orix Leasing Co.Ltd

M/B/No.798

F & G Housing Project
Embuldeniya

Short term loan

60,000,000

Lanka Orix Leasing Co.Ltd

M/B/No.629

35.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The company carries out transactions in the ordinary course of business on an arm’s length basis at commercial rates with related parties. Details of significant related party disclosures as follows.							
													
35.1
Transactions with key management personnel 							
								
Key Management Personnel (KMP) include the board of Directors of the company, Chief Executive Officer of the company, Key
employees of the group including Directors of subsidiary companies and Corporate Management of the company.

Compensation of key management personnel of the company

Short-term employment benefits
Director Fees

2013

2012

Rs.

Rs.
12,244,000

5, 173,700

4,524,000

1,330,000

16,768,000

6,503,700

In addition to the salaries, the company has also provided non-cash benefits such as vehicle, insurance for key Management
Personnel in line with the approved benefit plan of the company.							
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35.2

Transactions with Key management personnel of the company						

The company enters into transactions, arrangements and agreements involving directors, senior management and their related
concerns in the ordinary course of business at commercial interest and commission rates.
The following table provides the total amount of transactions, which have been entered into with key management personnel
for the relevant financial year.							
								

Maximum Balance
Rs.

Balance
Rs.

Income
Rs.

31 March 2013
Deposits

21,354,294

11,037,500

2,297,650

21,354,294

21,354,294

3,309,916

31 March 2012
Deposits
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COMPANY INFORMATION
Company Name 		 : UB Finance Co. Ltd.
Statutory Status

: Limited Liability Company

Incorporated On 		

: 12-07-1961

Company Reg. No.

: PB 113 (Previously PVS/PBS 1940)

Governed By 		
			

: The Finance Companies Act No. 27 of 1979, The Finance
Business Act No.42 of 2011 & The Finance Leasing Act No. 56 of 2000

Registered Office

: No. 10, Daisy Villa Avenue, Colombo 10

Head Office 		

: No. 10, Daisy Villa Avenue, Colombo 10

Telephone 		

: +94 11 2168888

Fax 			

: +94 11 2508517

Email 			

: info@ubf.lk

Website 		

: www.ubf.lk

External Auditor

: M/S Ernst & Young

Company Secretary

: Ms. Nirosha Kannangara

Bankers 		

: Union Bank of Colombo PLC & Commercial Bank of Ceylon

VAT Registration No.

: 104019404-7000

BRANCH NETWORK
LOCATION

PHONE #

FAX #

Head Office Branch

No. 10 Daisy Villa Avenue,
Colombo 4

011-2168888

011-2508517

Ambalangoda Branch

No.11E1/1B, New Road,
Ambalangoda

091-2254604

091-2254605

Negombo Branch

No.539, Colombo Road,
Kurana, Negombo

031-2233199

031-2227793

Tissamaharama Branch

No. 163, Kachcheriyagama,
Tissamaharama

047-2238512

047-2239630
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